
 

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg 
 

 

 
AGENDA 
 

Committee 
 
 

ECONOMY & CULTURE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Date and Time  
of Meeting 
 

TUESDAY, 21 JUNE 2022, 4.30 PM 
 

Venue  
 
 

CR 4, COUNTY HALL - MULTI LOCATION MEETING 
 

Membership 
 
 

Councillor Wong (Chair) 
Councillors Berman, Brown-Reckless, Cunnah, Henshaw, Jenkins, 
Lloyd Jones and Robinson 
 

 Time 
approx. 
 

1   Appointment of Chair & Committee Membership   
 
The Council at its meeting held on 26 May 2022 appointed Councillor 
Peter Wong as Chair and the following Members to this Committee: 
Councillors Rodney Berman, Catriona Brown-Reckless, Stephen 
Cunnah, Jane Henshaw, Peter Huw Jenkins, Helen Lloyd Jones and 
Sara Robinson. 
 

 

2   Terms of Reference  (Pages 5 - 6) 
 
To note the Terms of Reference for the Committee. 
 

 

3   Apologies for Absence   
 
To receive apologies for absence. 
 

 

4   Declarations of Interest   
 
To be made at the start of the agenda item in question, in accordance 
with the Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 

 

5   Minutes  (Pages 7 - 12) 
 
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 9 
March 2022. 
 
 
 

 



 

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg 
 

6   Shared Prosperity Fund  (Pages 13 - 20) 
 
For Members to undertake policy development scrutiny, ahead of pre-

decision scrutiny in July of planned report to Cabinet. 

 
 

4.30 pm 

7   Overview of Economic Development Directorate  (Pages 21 - 94) 
 
For Members to receive an overview of Directorate and the main areas of 

focus 2022-23 

 
 

5.10 pm 

8   Work Programme 2022-23  (Pages 95 - 98) 
 

 

9   Urgent Items (if any)   
 

 

10   Date of next meeting   
 
12 July 2022 at 4.30pm. 
 

 

 
 
Davina Fiore 
Director Governance & Legal Services 
Date:  Wednesday, 15 June 2022 
Contact:  Andrea Redmond, 02920 872434, a.redmond@cardiff.gov.uk 
 

 



 

This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg 
 

WEBCASTING  
 

This meeting will be filmed for live and/or subsequent broadcast on the 
Council’s website.  The whole of the meeting will be filmed, except 

where there are confidential or exempt items, and the footage will be on 
the website for 6 months.  A copy of it will also be retained in 

accordance with the Council’s data retention policy. 
 

Members of the public may also film or record this meeting. 
 

If you make a representation to the meeting you will be deemed to have 
consented to being filmed.  By entering the body of the Chamber you 
are also consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those 

images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes.  
If you do not wish to have your image captured you should sit in the 

public gallery area. 
 

If you have any queries regarding webcasting of meetings, please 
contact Committee Services on 02920 872020 or  

email Democratic Services 

mailto:democraticservices@cardiff.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Economy & Culture Committee Terms of Reference. 
 
To scrutinise, measure and actively promote improvement in the Council’s 
performance in the provision of services and compliance with Council policies, aims 
and objectives in the area of economic regeneration. 
 
• Cardiff City Region City Deal  
• Inward Investment and the marketing of Cardiff 
• Economic Strategy & Employment  
• European Funding & Investment  
• Small to Medium Enterprise Support  
• Cardiff Harbour Authority  
• Lifelong Learning  
• Leisure Centres  
• Sports Development  
• Parks & Green Spaces  
• Libraries, Arts & Culture  
• Civic Buildings  
• Events & Tourism  
• Strategic Projects 
• Innovation &Technology Centres  
• Local Training & Enterprise 
 
To assess the impact of partnerships with and resources and services provided by 
external organisations including the Welsh Government, joint local government 
services, Welsh Government Sponsored Public Bodies and quasi-departmental non-
governmental bodies on the effectiveness of Council service delivery. 
 
To report to an appropriate Cabinet or Council meeting on its findings and to make 
recommendations on measures which may enhance Council performance or service 
delivery in this area. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg 

 

ECONOMY & CULTURE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
9 MARCH 2022 
 
Present: Councillor Howells(Chairperson) 
 Councillors Henshaw, Gordon, Gavin Hill-John, Lay and Robson 

 
77 :   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Cllr Lay had advised that he would be late joining the meeting. 
 
78 :   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Cllr Henshaw declared a prejudicial interest in Item 4 and left the meeting for 
consideration of this item. 
 
79 :   MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meetings held on 19 January 2022 and 21 February 2022 were 
agreed as correct records. 
 
80 :   ALLOTMENT STRATEGY  
 
Members were advised that this item was to undertake pre-decision scrutiny of a 
report to Cabinet that seeks approval of the proposed Allotment Strategy 2022-2027. 
The scope the scrutiny is to explore the consultation process, draft Strategy, 
proposed delivery plan, partnership working and implications & risks for the council. A 
letter with the committee’s comments, observations and recommendations will be 
sent to the Cabinet ahead of Thursday’s meeting. 

 
The Chairperson welcomed Cllr Bradbury – Cabinet Member for Culture & Leisure; 
Jon Maidment – Operational Manager – Parks & Cardiff Harbour Authority; Rosie 
James –Strategy and Development Manager, Parks and Alan Mc Coy – South Rise 
Allotments Site Representative for this item. 
 
The Chairperson invited the Cabinet Member and external witnesses to make 
opening statements after which Members were invited to ask questions or make any 
comments/observations. 
 
Members were delighted to hear the cooperative spirit that informed the review and 
development of the Strategy and wished to place on record their thanks to site 
representatives for their input and support, which was needed and welcomed.  
 
Members explored how the acknowledged repairs backlog could be addressed given 
there is no specific capital allocation for allotments, meaning that monies need to be 
found from existing council budgets or alternative sources. Members noted that, in 
2021/22, Welsh Government funding had been allocated to allotments but that there 
was no news regarding funding in 2022/23. Members also noted that officers were 
working to identify alternative funding sources, such as their recent success re Travis 
Perkins Legacy funding for three sites. Members noted that sites with local 
management agreements can bid for specific external grants, however, there 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



 

 
This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg 

 

remained a shortfall and Members were pleased to hear the acknowledgement that 
allotments could do with budget growth in future years. 
 
Members were pleased that officers recognised the need for better intelligence about 
the maintenance and repair needs of sites and that they would be working to improve 
data on this, which would help support funding bids.  
 
Members discussed the issue of water repairs and considered that these should be 
placed high on the list of challenges to be addressed.  
 
Members discussed the provision of toilets on sites, highlighting the benefits of 
compostable toilets, in terms of reduced maintenance costs, and were pleased to 
hear that some sites already have these, some funded by grants. Members wished to 
accept the offer to provide a list of sites with compostable toilets.  
 
Members noted the point made by Alan McCoy that it was essential for preliminary 
works to be undertaken to ascertain if the ground conditions are suitable for 
compostable toilets, given the experience of South Rise allotments, which is on clay 
soil.  
 
Members also noted the points raised by officers that there needs to be a review of 
prices to reflect the costs of amenities provided, such as flushable toilets.  
 
Members noted that the Allotment Strategy focuses on allotments and that 
community growing is covered elsewhere, with officers supportive of proposals and 
actively seeking land for growing food, in line with the commitments given as part of 
the Greener, Healthier, Wilder Cardiff motion to Council. 
 
AGREED:  that the Chairperson, on behalf of the Committee, writes to the Cabinet 
Member conveying the observations of the Committee when discussing the way 
forward. 
 
81 :   REPORT OF THE LEADER AND CLLR BRADBURY  
 
Members were advised that this item was to undertake pre-decision scrutiny of a 
report to Cabinet that seeks approval for Cardiff to become a bidding host city for the 
UEFA European Football Championship Final Tournament 2028 (“Euro 2028”). 
 
Members noted that the Chairperson had agreed that this item be deemed ‘urgent’, 
as set out in the Constitution, and therefore Call-In was disapplied. 
 
The Chairperson welcomed Cllr Thomas – Leader; Cllr Bradbury - Cabinet Member 
for Culture & Leisure; Paul Orders – Chief Executive and Kathryn Richards – Head of 
Culture, Venues, Tourism and Events for this item. 
 
Members were reminded that Appendix 1 contained information deemed exempt, in 
accordance with paragraphs 14 and 16 of Part 4 and paragraph 21 of Part 5 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 and should they wish to refer to any 
information contained in the appendix then the Committee would have to go into 
closed session. 
 

Page 8



 

 
This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg 

 

The Chairperson invited the Leader, Cabinet Members and Chief Executive to make 
opening statements after which members were invited to ask questions and make 
comments/observations on the open information. 
 
Members welcomed the proposal to send an in-principle letter to Welsh Government 
supporting an expression of interest to be a host city for Euros 2028, in particular with 
respect to Cardiff’s financial contribution.  
 
Members were aware from previous scrutiny that major events bring benefits to 
Cardiff and Wales. As such, Members were pleased to hear the commitment to 
negotiate strongly to achieve community benefits, including community sport 
provision.  
 
Members agreed with comments that Cardiff is well placed to play a role in delivering 
a world class Euro 2028 and experienced at managing the impact on local 
communities and residents.  
 
Members sought assurance that the projected requirements and associated cost 
implications captured in the confidential Appendix (Appendix 1) as an early indication 
were robust. Members noted these were based on previous events, including the 
Champions League Final and discussions with other potential host cities. Members 
also noted that, as the Euros are in 2028, these go beyond the Medium-Term 
Financial Plan and are indicative at this stage.  
 
Members noted the point made that it is important to be clear to Welsh Government 
what the limits are for Cardiff Council, to assist with ongoing dialogue re bid 
specification. Members queried what the impact would be for Cardiff were another 
potential host city to pull out of the process. Members agreed that it would be better 
for all potential host cities to be part of the arrangements, to strengthen the narrative 
of a five-nation bid but noted the view that, if this were to happen, it would not 
undermine the bid per se, and that Cardiff may be asked to host additional games 
 
The Chairperson invited questions, comments and observations from Members on 
the Confidential information and Members were reminded that Committee were 
required to consider this in a closed session to discuss information deemed exempt, 
in accordance with paragraphs 14 and 16 of Part 4 and paragraph 21 of Part 5 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.  

RESOLVED: to exclude the Press and Public from the meeting. 

AGREED:  that the Chairperson, on behalf of the Committee, writes to the Cabinet 
Member conveying the observations of the Committee when discussing the way 
forward. 
 
82 :   CARDIFF BAY REGENERATION UPDATE  
 
Members were advised that this item was to undertake pre-decision scrutiny of a 
report to Cabinet that covers a wide range of projects in Cardiff Bay. Many of these 
have been subject to scrutiny over the last year and Committee’s confidential letters 
following these meetings had been circulated to all Committee Members.  
 

Page 9



 

 
This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg 

 

The Chairperson welcomed Cllr Goodway– Cabinet Member for Investment & 
Development; Neil Hanratty – Director of Economic Development; Chris Barnett – 
Operational Manager – Major Projects and Jon Day – Operational Manager – 
Investment & Tourism for this item.       
    
Members were reminded that this item contains confidential information at 
Appendices 4-9, 11, 13, and Appendices 15-17 – and were asked not to refer to 
these in the open session. 
 
The Chairperson invited the Cabinet Member to make an opening statement after 
which Members were provided with a presentation by Officers.  Members were then 
asked for any questions, comments or observations they had on the open 
information. 
 
Members noted that this item covered a lot of interconnected projects and Members 
noted the updates in relation to the Atlantic Wharf Regeneration, including the Indoor 
Arena, Red Dragon Centre and associated projects, as well as the International 
Sports Village, including the velodrome and other cycling facilities, and transport 
projects associated with both these sites.  
 
Regarding the Indoor Arena, Members noted the increased capacity to 17,000 
spectators. Members explored how the Council was consulting and engaging with 
residents and addressing concerns raised and were pleased to hear that these were 
being taken seriously, with work to address noise pollution, car parking and loss of 
green space.  
 
Members were also pleased to hear that the Indoor Arena will be one of the greenest 
in the UK. Members noted that to achieve carbon neutrality may be beyond reach as 
a stand-alone building and that work is progressing on an energy strategy for the 
wider Atlantic Wharf site to assist the Council to meet its One Planet Cardiff pledge of 
net zero carbon.  
 
Members thanked officers for ensuring daytime CGIs were available, as previously 
requested; similarly, Members felt it would be beneficial for CGI images to highlight 
the greening that will take place in public spaces to offset the hard standing required 
to enable the area to cope with the volume of spectators.  
 
Members received updates on various family attractions, including This is Wales, and 
sought to understand the viability of these given the current cost of living crisis. 
Members noted the officer’s point that the Outline Business Case for Atlantic Wharf, 
due to Cabinet in Summer 2022, would contain data on this.  
 
Members were pleased to see progress being made to find a good use for the 
Graving Docks. Members discussed the proposed improvements for Lloyd George 
Avenue, which they welcomed in principle, given that these would enhance 
connectivity, public and active transport, boost biodiversity and promote health and 
wellbeing. Members were pleased that there would be consultation and engagement 
with local communities to ensure final proposals reflect their views.  
 

Page 10



 

 
This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg 

 

Members noted that early discussions were being held on the possibility of replacing 
Herbert Street bridge and improving that general area, to assist connectivity between 
the city centre and Cardiff Bay.  
 
Regarding the International Sports Village updated masterplan, Members were 
pleased to see that it had been possible to ensure public access around the water’s 
edge and noted the officer’s assurance that this would be 15-20 metres at its 
narrowest.  
 
Members wished to highlight the need to ensure that free facilities are promoted in 
Cardiff Bay, for walking, running, cycling, and swimming.  
 
The Chairperson then invited questions, comments and observations from Members 
on the Confidential information and Members were reminded that Committee were 
required to consider this in a closed session to discuss information deemed exempt, 
in accordance with paragraphs 14 and 16 of Part 4 and paragraph 21 of Part 5 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.  

RESOLVED: to exclude the Press and Public from the meeting. 

AGREED:  that the Chairperson, on behalf of the Committee, writes to the Cabinet 
Member conveying the observations of the Committee when discussing the way 
forward. 
 
83 :   ELY YOUTH ZONE  
 
Members were advised that this item was to undertake pre-decision scrutiny of a 
report to Cabinet that seeks authority to prepare a Full Business Case for the Ely 
Youth Zone project and to assemble land for the delivery of the Ely Youth Zone 
project. 
 
The Chairperson welcomed Cllr Thorne– Cabinet Member for Housing & 
Communities; Neil Hanratty – Director of Economic Development and Jon Day – 
Operational Manager – Investment & Tourism for this item. 
 
Members were reminded that Appendices 1-6 contained information deemed exempt, 
in accordance with paragraphs 14 and 16 of Part 4 and paragraph 21 of Part 5 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 and should they wish to refer to any 
information contained in the appendix then the Committee would have to go into 
closed session. 
 
The Chairperson invited the Cabinet Member to make an opening statement after 
which members were provided with a presentation and invited to ask questions and 
make comments/observations on the open information. 
 
Members were interested to hear about the work with OnSide and pleased that their 
work in England had been successful, delivering many benefits for the young people 
they engage and for the surrounding communities.  
 
Members were pleased to hear a range of partners would be involved in the 
management of the charity established to operate and oversee the Youth Zone, 
including community, sports, health, disability, and employability partners. Members 

Page 11



 

 
This document is available in Welsh / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg 

 

were also impressed by the range of facilities provided in Youth Zones in England 
and could see how these would assist in boosting skills, employability, and 
opportunities for young people.  
 
In terms of funding the Youth Zone, Members noted a Levelling Up Fund bid would 
be submitted to meet the 50% capital contribution required of the local authority and 
a Shared Prosperity Fund bid submitted to meet the 33% revenue costs for years 1-
3. Members noted a further report would be taken to Cabinet for the Full Business 
Case, which would include whether these bids have been successful. 
 
Members were pleased to see proposals for a facility to help young people living in 
some of the most deprived communities in Wales and were also pleased to hear that 
work is underway to develop a masterplan for Ely to assist in wider regeneration.  
 
Members queried whether the name was appropriate, given concerns that it may put 
off young people who are not in Ely, and were pleased to hear that young people 
who are members of the Youth Zone would decide its final name. 
 
The Chairperson invited questions, comments and observations from Members on 
the Confidential information and Members were reminded that Committee were 
required to consider this in a closed session to discuss information deemed exempt, 
in accordance with paragraphs 14 and 16 of Part 4 and paragraph 21 of Part 5 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.  

RESOLVED: to exclude the Press and Public from the meeting. 

AGREED:  that the Chairperson, on behalf of the Committee, writes to the Cabinet 
Member conveying the observations of the Committee when discussing the way 
forward. 
 
84 :   COMMITTEE BUSINESS  
 
The Principal Scrutiny Officer outlined the report for Members, asking them for any 
amendments to the Scrutiny Annual Report and for suggested themes/highlights for 
the Scrutiny Annual Report. 
 
Members were also asked for scrutiny suggestions for the Committee going forward. 
 
85 :   URGENT ITEMS (IF ANY)  
 
None. 
 
86 :   DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 
To be arranged. 
 
 
The meeting terminated at 7.35 pm 
 

Page 12



 

 

CYNGOR CAERDYDD                 

CARDIFF COUNCIL 

 
 
ECONOMY & CULTURE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE       21 JUNE 2022 

 
 
SHARED PROSPERITY FUND: POLICY DEVELOPMENT SCRUTINY 
 

 

 
Purpose of the Report 
 

1. To give Members background information on the UK Government’s Shared 

Prosperity Fund priorities and bidding mechanism to aid scrutiny of the approach 

proposed for Cardiff. 

 

Scope of Scrutiny 

2. During this scrutiny, Members can explore: 

i. The proposed approach to applying for Shared Prosperity Funding 

ii. Areas where bids may be developed for submission  

iii. The anticipated benefits of bids and their role in levelling up Cardiff 

iv. The role of the Council in developing and delivering bids 

v. Whether there are any risks to the Council 

vi. The timeline and next steps 

vii. Future scrutiny of the Shared Prosperity Fund bids and projects in 

Cardiff. 

Structure of the meeting 

3. Members will hear from Councillor Huw Thomas (Leader), Paul Orders (Chief 

Executive) and Jon Day (Operational Manager – Tourism and Investment). There 

will be a presentation taking Members through the proposals, followed by 

Members questions. 

 

4. Members will then be able to decide what comments, observations, or 

recommendations they wish to pass on to the Cabinet for their consideration as 

they develop their proposed policy. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



 

 

Background 
 

5. The United Kingdom Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF) forms part of the UK 

Government’s Levelling Up programme, which has been hailed as ‘The defining 

mission of this government .. to level up the country – to close the gap in 

productivity, health, income and opportunity – between different parts of the 

United Kingdom.’1 

 

6. Announced in April 2022, the £2.6bn UKSPF covers 2022-25. The methodology 

for the UKSPF aligns with the overall Levelling Up objectives, which are to: 

o Boost productivity, pay, jobs and living standards by growing the private 

sector, especially in those places where they are lagging 

o Spread opportunities and improve public services, especially in those places 

where they are weakest 

o Restore a sense of community, local pride and belonging, especially in those 

places where they have been lost 

o Empower local leaders and communities, especially in those places lacking 

local agency. 

 

7. These objectives have been used to identify three investment priorities for 

UKSPF: 

o Community and Place 

o Supporting Local Business, and 

o People and Skills. 

8. Each investment priority has several objectives, shown overleaf, and each 

objective has a set of proposed interventions, which set out the types of activity 

that can be supported by the UKSPF. The Department for Levelling Up, Housing 

and Communities (DLUHC) states that it has worked with the Welsh Government 

and the Welsh Local Government Association to inform the most appropriate mix 

of interventions for Wales, which are available to view here: 

Interventions list for Wales - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 

                                                           
1 Stuart Andrew MP Minister for Housing - The Levelling Up and Regeneration Bill will put people at 
the heart of the planning system (politicshome.com) downloaded 9/6/22 
 

Page 14

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-shared-prosperity-fund-interventions-outputs-and-indicators/interventions-list-for-wales
https://www.politicshome.com/thehouse/article/the-levelling-up-and-regeneration-bill-will-put-people-at-the-heart-of-the-planning-system?utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=EB%200806&utm_content=EB%200806+CID_1291f84a58f4ba472dfe243ed9427d0d&utm_source=Email%20newsletters&utm_term=The%20Levelling%20Up%20and%20Regeneration%20Bill%20will%20put%20people%20at%20the%20heart%20of%20the%20planning%20system
https://www.politicshome.com/thehouse/article/the-levelling-up-and-regeneration-bill-will-put-people-at-the-heart-of-the-planning-system?utm_medium=email&utm_campaign=EB%200806&utm_content=EB%200806+CID_1291f84a58f4ba472dfe243ed9427d0d&utm_source=Email%20newsletters&utm_term=The%20Levelling%20Up%20and%20Regeneration%20Bill%20will%20put%20people%20at%20the%20heart%20of%20the%20planning%20system


 

 

 

Investment 
Priority 

Objective 

Communities 
and place 

 Strengthening our social fabric and fostering a sense of 
local pride and belonging, through investment in 
activities that enhance physical, cultural and social ties 
and amenities, such as community infrastructure and 
local green space, and community-led projects 
 

 Building resilient, safe and healthy neighbourhoods, 
through investment in quality places that people want to 
live, work, play and learn in, through targeted 
improvements to the built environment and innovative 
approaches to crime prevention. 

Supporting 
local business 

 Creating jobs and boosting community cohesion, 
through investments that build on existing industries and 
institutions, and range from support for starting 
businesses to visible improvements to local retail, 
hospitality and leisure sector facilities. 
 

 Promoting networking and collaboration, through 
interventions that bring together businesses and 
partners within and across sectors to share knowledge, 
expertise and resources, and stimulate innovation and 
growth. 
 

 Increasing private sector investment in growth-
enhancing activities, through targeted support for small 
and medium-sized businesses. 

People and 
Skills 

 Boosting core skills and supporting adults to progress in 
work, by targeting adults with no or low-level 
qualifications and skills in maths and upskilling the 
working population. 
 

 Reducing levels of economic inactivity through 
investment in bespoke intensive life and employment 
support tailored to local need.  
 

 Supporting people furthest from the labour market to 
overcome barriers to work by providing cohesive, locally 
tailored support, including access to basic skills. 
 

 Supporting local areas to fund gaps in local skills 
provision to support people to progress in work, and 
supplement local adult skills provision. 

 

 

 

Page 15



 

 

Bidding Mechanism 

9. All bids must align with an Investment Plan that has been approved by the UK 

Government. In Wales, these plans are being developed on a regional basis, in 

line with the Welsh Government’s Framework for Regional Investment. Under this 

framework, Cardiff falls within the South East Wales region, which aligns with the 

Cardiff Capital Region City Deal footprint2.  

 

10. The Investment Plan needs to outline: 

o Local context - evidence of opportunities and challenges, through the lens of 

the three investment priorities for UKSPF 

o Selection of outcomes and interventions - identifying the outcomes to target 

based on local context, and the interventions to prioritise 

o Delivery: detailing: 

a. Approach to delivery and governance 

b. Expenditure and deliverables 

c. Capability and resource. 

11. Plans also must set out measurable outcomes to enable lead authorities, local 

partners, the UK Government and devolved administrations to monitor progress. 

Common indicators are being developed to measure outputs, outcomes and 

impacts, to enable comparison between similar interventions and assist 

evaluation. Final indicator definitions are due to confirmed in the summer, prior to 

the submission date of the investment plans, when further guidance will be 

published on GOV.UK. 

12. The DLUHC specify that interventions can either be delivered at a larger scale in 

collaboration with other places or more locally, as appropriate. Interventions 

should suit local characteristics and are encouraged to align with relevant Welsh 

Government strategies and services. Areas should also develop their plans to 

maximise alignment and complementarity with national and local policy, and their 

regional economic frameworks.3 

                                                           
2 The Cardiff Capital Region City Deal consists of the following local authority areas: Blaenau Gwent, Bridgend, 
Cardiff, Caerphilly, Merthyr Tydfil, Monmouthshire, Newport, Rhondda Cynon Taff, Torfaen, and Vale of 
Glamorgan 
3 Interventions list for Wales - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 

Page 16

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-shared-prosperity-fund-interventions-outputs-and-indicators/interventions-list-for-wales


 

 

Next Steps 

13. Investment plans need to be submitted by 1 August 2022. After submission, the 

UK Government will assess applications and engage with the lead authority to 

enable sign off. Where a plan cannot be signed off first time, the UK Government 

will provide feedback to the lead local authority and work iteratively to secure sign 

off. 

 

14.  There is an overall allocation of £278m for the Cardiff Capital Region, with 

includes £48m allocated specifically for the Multiply programme, which seeks to 

improve adult numeracy skills and sits under the People and Skills investment 

priority. The £278m is based on an aggregation of local allocations for each of the 

ten constituent local authorities of the Cardiff Capital Region. Details of the 

mechanism used to determine local authority allocations are available here: 

UK Shared Prosperity Fund allocations: methodology note - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 

 

15. The next stage is for the Investment Plan to be agreed by all local authorities in 

the Cardiff Capital Region. Partners have been invited to support the development 

of the plan, by submitting evidence on local opportunities and challenges, 

outcomes and interventions. The following table sets out key dates: 

 

When Activity 

30 June 2022 Investment plan window opens 

1 August 2022 Investment plan window closes 

July – 
September 
2022 

Indicative investment plan assessment period for UK 
government 

October 2022 
onwards 

Anticipated date for first investment plans to be approved 

October 2022 
onwards 

Anticipated first payment to be made to lead local 
authorities 

March 2025 Three-year funding period ends 

 

Page 17

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/uk-shared-prosperity-fund-allocations-methodology/uk-shared-prosperity-fund-allocations-methodology-note


 

 

Previous Scrutiny 

16.  In June 2021, the previous Economy & Culture Scrutiny Committee scrutinised a 

report to Cabinet that provided: 

i. details of proposed Community Renewal Fund applications, the 

revenue-fund precursor to the UKSPF, and 

ii. details of proposed projects for Levelling-Up Fund applications, 

specifically for capital investment. One bid per MP constituency is 

allowed to this fund. 

 

17. The scrutiny papers are available here: 

Agenda for Economy & Culture Scrutiny Committee on Monday, 14th June, 2021, 4.30 pm : 

Cardiff Council (moderngov.co.uk) 

 

18. In March 2022, the previous Economy & Culture Scrutiny Committee scrutinised a 

report to Cabinet that sought authority to prepare a Full Business Case for the Ely 

Youth Zone project and to assemble land for the delivery of the Ely Youth Zone 

project. The proposal included a 50% capital contribution by the Council, funded 

by applying to the Levelling Up fund, and a Shared Prosperity Fund bid to meet 

33% revenue costs for years 1-3. The report to Cabinet in June 20214 contained 

the proposal to include a Youth Zone for Ely as the project for the Cardiff West 

MP constituency. 

 

19. Following scrutiny, the Committee sent a public letter to Councillor Thorne, 

Cabinet Member Housing and Communities, noting a further report will be taken 

to Cabinet for the Full Business Case, including whether the bids have been 

successful, welcoming proposals for a facility to help young people living in some 

of the most deprived communities in Wales and setting out their pleasure that 

work is underway to develop a masterplan for Ely to assist in wider regeneration. 

Way Forward 

20. Councillor Huw Thomas (Leader) will be invited to make a statement. Paul Orders 

(Chief Executive) and Jon Day (Operational Manager – Tourism and Investment) 

                                                           
4 Levelling Up Fund and Community Renewal Fund Applications – available at Agenda for Cabinet on Thursday, 
17th June, 2021, 2.00 pm : City of Cardiff Council (moderngov.co.uk) 

Page 18

https://cardiff.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=142&MId=5436&LLL=0
https://cardiff.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=142&MId=5436&LLL=0
https://cardiff.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=151&MId=5473&LLL=0
https://cardiff.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=151&MId=5473&LLL=0


 

 

will attend to give a presentation. All witnesses will be available to answer 

Members’ questions on the proposals. 

 

Legal Implications 

21. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review, and 

recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this 

report are to consider and review matters, there are no direct legal implications. 

However, legal implications may arise if and when the matters under review are 

implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with recommendations 

for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any legal implications arising 

from those recommendations. All decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council 

must (a) be within the legal powers of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural 

requirement imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or person 

exercising powers on behalf of the Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with 

the procedural requirements imposed by the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure 

Rules; (e) be fully and properly informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken 

having regard to the Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be 

reasonable and proper in all the circumstances. 

 

Financial Implications 

22. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review, and 

recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this 

report are to consider and review matters, there are no direct financial 

implications at this stage in relation to any of the work programme. However, 

financial implications may arise if and when the matters under review are 

implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with recommendations 

for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any financial implications 

arising from those recommendations. 

 

 

 

 

Page 19



 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

The Committee is recommended to: 

i) Consider the information in this report and the information presented at the 

meeting 

ii) Determine whether they would like to make any comments, observations or 

recommendations to the Cabinet on this matter to inform development of their 

proposed policy, and 

iii) Decide the way forward for any future scrutiny of the issues discussed. 

 

 

DAVINA FIORE 

Director of Governance & Legal Services 

15 June 2022 

 

 

 

Page 20



 

 

CYNGOR CAERDYDD 

CARDIFF COUNCIL 

       
ECONOMY & CULTURE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE                                                                        

         21 JUNE 2022 

 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DIRECTORATE: OVERVIEW 

 

Purpose of Report 

1. To provide Members with an overview of the Economic Development Directorate 

areas that fall within the responsibilities of this Committee. The overview will include 

key areas of work, challenges for 2022-23, and future priorities. 

 

Scope of Scrutiny  

2. The Committee’s Terms of Reference give responsibility for scrutinising most of the 

services provided by the Economic Development Directorate, except for Health & 

Safety, Strategic Estates, and Property Services, which fall within the remit of the 

Policy Review & Performance Scrutiny Committee, and Recycling Neighbourhood 

Services, which fall within the remit of the Environmental Scrutiny Committee.  

 

3. This item enables Members to gain an understanding of: 

 The operation of the Economic Development Directorate 

 the Directorate’s contribution to delivering the Council’s priorities 

 the challenges facing the Directorate in 2022-23, and 

 future priorities for the service area.  

 

4. This item also enables Members to engage in discussion with the Director of 

Economic Development, Neil Hanratty, to explore areas of particular interest. 

 

 

Page 21

Agenda Item 7



 

 

Background 

5. The work of the Council’s Directorates is shaped by the following key documents that 

set out the priorities for the Council: 

 Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 – requires local authorities to 

adopt well-being objectives and work in accordance with the Act 

 ‘Cardiff Well Being Plan 2018-2023’ – Cardiff Public Service Board’s Local 

Wellbeing Plan  

 Capital Ambition – the Administration’s five-year political ambition for Cardiff to 

become a greener, fairer, and stronger capital city 

 Corporate Plan 2022-25 – translates Administration’s priorities into deliverable 

objectives. 

 

6. Cardiff’s Well Being Plan 2018-2023 sets out seven well-being objectives, which have 

been adopted by the Council: 

 Cardiff is a great place to grow up 

 Cardiff is a great place to grow older 

 Supporting people out of poverty 

 Safe, confident, and empowered communities 

 A capital city that works for Wales  

 Cardiff grows in a resilient way  

 Modernising and integrating our public services 

 

7. The Council’s Corporate Plan1 sets out the steps that will be taken to achieve the 

seven Well-being Objectives, and how progress is measured. It also explains how 

these link to the following four Key Priorities: 

 Working for Cardiff 

 Working for Wales 

 Working for the Future 

 Working for Public Services 

8. The Corporate Plan also sets out how the Administration’s priorities for Cardiff will 

be achieved, providing clarity on what will be delivered and by when.  

                                                           
1 Here is a link to the Corporate Plan: Corporate Plan (cardiff.gov.uk) 

 

Page 22

https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Corporate-Plan/Pages/default.aspx


 

 

Economic Development Directorate - Overview  

9. The Economic Development Directorate includes the following Service Areas that fall 

within the remit of this Committee: 

 Economic Development 

 Major Projects 

 Parks, Sport, Harbour Authority & Leisure 

 Culture, Venues & Events 

 Shared Regulatory Services. 

 

10.  A brief overview of each of these areas is shown below: 

Economic Development and Major Projects 

 Cardiff City-Region -    including strategic partnerships such 
       as City Deal, and Western Gateway. 

 Business Support / Business Development - providing advice, support, access to  
       finance and property, and provision  
       of Council workshops. 

 Inward Investment & City Marketing -  promoting the city as an inward  
       investment location and working  
       directly with investors to create new  
       employment opportunities. 

 City Centre Management -   day to day management of city centre, 
       business engagement and co- 
       ordination of Council resources. 

 Major Projects -     Atlantic Wharf, International Sports  
       Village, Metro Central, Canal Quarter, 
       Dumballs Road. 

 

Parks, Sport, Harbour Authority & Leisure 

 Parks and open spaces -    15 Green Flag parks, park ranger  
       services, volunteer networks, Bute  
       Park Nursery and Education Centre. 

 Sport -      Outdoor Sport facilities, Playgrounds, 
       Exercise Referral Scheme. 

 Leisure Services -     Greenwich Leisure Limited (GLL-  
       Better) operate 8 leisure centres on  
       behalf of the Council. Channel View  
       Leisure Centre is managed in-house. 

 Cardiff Harbour Authority -    Cardiff Bay Barrage, the freshwater  
       Bay and waterfront, Flat Holm Island, 
       White Water Rafting Centre, and Water 
       Quality Management. 

 

Page 23



 

 

Culture, Venues & Events 

 Cultural Venues -     Cardiff Castle/ St David’s Hall/ New  
       Theatre/ City Hall/ Cardiff Museum etc. 

 Major Events -     Supporting the delivery of national and 
       international sporting and cultural  
       events including Cardiff Marathon. 

 Tourism -      Tourism marketing, Visit Cardiff  
       Network, Convention Bureau. 

 

Shared Regulatory Services 

 Shared Regulatory Services -   Trading Standards - provided in a joint 
       working arrangement between  
       Bridgend, Cardiff, and the Vale of  
       Glamorgan Councils. 

 

11.  For further background information, the draft Economic Development Directorate 

Delivery Plan 2022-23 is attached at Appendix A. This provides information on the 

areas covered, the actions scheduled and key performance measures. 

 

Way Forward 

12. Neil Hanratty (Director of Economic Development) will provide an introductory 

overview of the Directorate areas that fall within this Committee’s terms of reference 

and the key challenges facing the Economic Development Directorate during the 

coming year. His presentation is attached at Appendix B. He will then be available 

to answer Members’ questions.  

 

13. Members may wish to explore the following areas: 

 The main areas of work for 2022-23 and how these were identified 

 The key challenges facing the Directorate  

 How the Directorate is planning for the future, and 

 Views on where scrutiny could assist. 

Legal Implications 

14. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review, and recommend 

but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this report are to 

consider and review matters there are no direct legal implications. However, legal 

implications may arise if and when the matters under review are implemented with or 

Page 24



 

 

without any modifications. Any report with recommendations for decision that goes to 

Cabinet/Council will set out any legal implications arising from those 

recommendations. All decisions taken by or on behalf of the Council must (a) be 

within the legal powers of the Council; (b) comply with any procedural requirement 

imposed by law; (c) be within the powers of the body or person exercising powers on 

behalf of the Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with the procedural 

requirements imposed by the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure Rules; (e) be fully and 

properly informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken having regard to the 

Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be reasonable and proper in all the 

circumstances. 

 

Financial Implications 

15. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review, and recommend 

but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this report are to 

consider and review matters there are no direct financial implications at this stage in 

relation to any of the work programme. However, financial implications may arise if 

and when the matters under review are implemented with or without any 

modifications. Any report with recommendations for decision that goes to 

Cabinet/Council will set out any financial implications arising from those 

recommendations. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Committee is recommended to: 

i. consider the information in this report, the appendices and provided at the 

meeting 

ii. decide whether it wishes to make any comments or recommendations to the 

relevant Cabinet Member and Officers, and 

iii. discuss whether any of the issues raised should be considered as part of the 

Committee’s development of its work programme for 2022/23.  

 

DAVINA FIORE 
Director of Governance and Legal Services  
15 June 2022 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           

 Economic Development  
Directorate Delivery Plan  
2022/2023 
(Corporate Template) 

P
age 27



Directorate Delivery Plan – Template  
 

1 
 

CONTENTS 
 

 Description Pages 

1. Introduction 2 
2. Directorate Profile 4 

3. Progress, Challenges and Priorities for 2022/23 6 
4. Well-being Objective 1:  Cardiff is a great place to grow up 

Priority:  Continuing to deliver the Cardiff 2030 vision for education and learning 
 

12 

 Well-being Objective 4:  Safe, Confident and Empowered Communities 
Priority:  Building new Council homes and investing in community facilities 
Priority:  Working together to support a healthier and more active population 

 

17 

 Well-being Objective 5:  A Capital City that Works for Wales 
Priority:  Leading the economic recovery in Wales 
Priority:  Leading a recovery programme for the City Centre and Bay 
Priority:  Supporting innovation and business development, with an enhanced package of interventions to help the sectors 
worst affected by the pandemic 
Priority:  Supporting the recovery of the cultural sector and major events programme 

 

23 

 Well-being Objective 6:  Cardiff Grows in a Resilient Way 
Priority:  Transforming Cardiff’s public transport and active travel systems 
Priority:  Making Cardiff a world-leading recycling city 
Priority:  Working as one team to keep our streets clean 

 

30 

 Well-being Objective 7:  Modernising and Integrating our Public Services 
Priority:  Developing a comprehensive programme of organisational recovery and renewal 
Priority:  Delivering leaner and greener Council buildings 
Priority:  Managing the Covid-19 pandemic 

 

33 

5. Key Indicators of Corporate Health 36 

P
age 28



 

 
 

6. Directorate Risks X 

7. Audit Recommendations 
External Audit 
Internal Audit 

X 

8. Scrutiny Recommendations X 

9. Workforce Planning & Development  

10. Corporate Safeguarding Requirements X 

11 Delivering the Welsh Language Standards X 

P
age 29



Directorate Delivery Plan – Template  
 

3 
 

1. Introduction 
 
Golden Thread 

  
 

Page 30



 

4 
 

1.1 The Council’s Corporate Plan sets out how the Administrations Priorities for 
Cardiff will be achieved, providing clarity on what will be delivered and by 
when. The plan also satisfies the requirements of the Well-Being of Future 
Generations Act, by setting Well-being Objectives, the steps we will take to 
achieve them and how we will measure our progress.  

 
The Council has adopted seven well-being objectives which, by working 
towards their achievement, will ensure the delivery of Capital Ambition. These 
are: 

 

 Cardiff is a great place to grow up 

 Cardiff is a great place to grow older 

 Supporting people out of poverty 

 Safe, confident and empowered communities 

 A capital city that works for Wales  

 Cardiff grows in a resilient way  

 Modernising and integrating our public services 
 

For each well-being objective, a number of high level “steps” and performance 
indicators have been identified to measure progress. 

 
Directorates across the Council play a critical role in enabling the Council to 
achieve its priorities and Directorate Delivery Plans (DDP) which set out 
actions, milestones and key performance indicators are the key vehicle for this. 
Directorates are responsible for identifying the Well-Being objectives and 
associated steps to which they contribute, and for developing milestones 
which state the actions they will take. Key performance indicators must also be 
identified to measure progress, alongside any risks, auditor recommendations 
which must be managed and responded to. DDPs must be written within the 
context of good resource management, for example, workforce development 
and financial management and must include an assessment of progress and 
challenges to identify appropriate priorities. 

The Golden Thread 
 

Capital Ambition: Sets out the political priorities of the Council’s 
Administration 
 
The Corporate Plan: Sets out how Capital Ambition will be translated into 
deliverable organisational steps, including milestones and targets. 
 
The Local Well-Being Plan: Sets out on how the Capital Ambition 
priorities which require collaboration with public service partners will be 
delivered. 
 
Directorate Delivery Plans (DDP): Sets out the directorate’s contribution 
towards delivering the Corporate Plan, as well as any other priorities 
which may include responding to any identified business needs, risks or 
audit recommendations 
 
Service Plans: Where appropriate, the Directorate may choose to have 
service plans to support the DDP 
 
Personal Objectives: Set to capture individual’s objectives to help 
achieve the Service and Directorate objectives, which contribute overall 
to the aims and objectives of the Council.  
 
Well-being Objective: Sets out what the Council wants to achieve 
 
Steps: What the Council will do, and by when, to help 
achieve each Well-being Objective 
 
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs): Indicators of operational 
performance that indicate if the steps the Council are taking are effective 
 
Target: Sets out a numerical value on Key Performance 
Indicators to be achieved 

P
age 31



 

Page 5 of 53 

2. Directorate Profile 
 

The Economic Development Directorate includes the following Service Areas - Recycling Neighbourhood Services; the Council’s Economic 
Development team; Major Projects; Parks, Sport, Harbour Authority & Leisure, County Estates and Culture, Venues & Events teams.  The directorate 
has responsibility for a wide and complex range of statutory and non-statutory duties, functions and services, as set out below: 
 
Recycling Neighbourhood Services and Shared Regulatory Services 
 

 Recycling Services and Disposal - Collection of recycling, general waste, food and garden waste streams; bulky item and hygiene streams; 
and commercial waste streams; Material Recovery Facility (MRF), Lamby Way and Bessemer Close Recycling Centres. 

 Environmental Enforcement - Fly-Tipping, Waste Presentation Enforcement Fines, Dog controls. 

 Street Cleansing - Street Cleansing, Road Sweeping and Management of public bins. 

 Shared Regulatory Services - Trading Standards, Environmental Health and Licensing provided in a joint working arrangement between 
Bridgend, Cardiff and the Vale of Glamorgan Councils. 

 
Economic Development and Major Projects 
 

 City Deal, Cardiff City-Region - including other strategic partnerships such as Western Gateway. 

 Business Support / Business Development - Providing advice and support, access to finance and property, and provision of Council 
workshops. 

 Inward Investment & City Marketing - Promoting the city as an inward investment location and working directly with investors to create 
new employment opportunities. 

 City Centre Management - Day to day management of city centre, business engagement and co-ordination of Council resources. 

 Major Projects - Atlantic Wharf, International Sports Village, Metro Central, Canal Quarter, Dumballs Road. 
 
Parks, Sport, Harbour Authority & Leisure 
 

 Parks and open spaces - 15 Green Flag parks, park ranger services, volunteer networks, Bute Park Nursery and Education Centre. 

 Sport - Outdoor Sport facilities, Playgrounds, Exercise Referral Scheme. 

 Leisure Services - Greenwich Leisure Limited (GLL) operate 8 of the 9 leisure centres on behalf of the Council.  Channel View Leisure Centre 
is managed in-house. 

P
age 32



 

Page 6 of 53 

 Cardiff Harbour Authority - Cardiff Bay Barrage, the freshwater Bay and waterfront, Flat Holm Island, White Water Rafting Centre, and 
Water Quality Management. 

 
County Estates  
 

 Health & Safety - Health & Safety and Occupational Health. 

 Strategic Estates - Management of Council buildings and property estate, development of core office accommodation, hybrid working 
model. 

 Property Services - Pest Control, Cleaning of Council buildings, management of Core Council buildings, building maintenance. 

 School’s Organisation Programme Capital Delivery - Delivery of the construction programme of new schools for the Education Department.  

 Projects Design & Development (PDD) - Construction design and project management - schools, hubs and offices. 
 
Culture, Venues & Events 
 

 Cultural Venues - Cardiff Castle/ St David’s Hall/ New Theatre/ City Hall/ Cardiff Museum etc. 

 Major Events - Supporting the delivery of national and international sporting and cultural events including Cardiff Marathon. 

 Tourism - Tourism marketing, Visit Cardiff Network, Convention Bureau. 
 

  

P
age 33



 

Page 7 of 53 

3. Progress, Challenges and Priorities for 2022/23 
 

The following section summarises the findings of a directorate management team self-evaluation of performance during 2021/22 and key priorities 
for 2022/23: 
 
 
What’s Gone Well? 
 
Recycling Neighbourhood Services and Shared Regulatory Services 

 

 4-day working collection model now embedded limiting the time waste is presented on the streets of Cardiff. 

 Increasing the number of ultra low emission vehicles (ULEV) in the refuse collection fleet. 

 Changes to the recycling centres in terms of booking systems and ‘no black bag’ policy improving recycling performance.  

 Delivery of service through the pandemic with no budgetary impact due to good financial reporting to Welsh Government to receive 
associated funding. 

 Management of Covid pandemic by Shared Regulatory Services 
 
Economic Development 

 

 Excellent support and response to COVID 

 Economy has maintained levels of competitiveness  

 Collaborative working with CCR and WG has seen positive impact 
 
Major Projects 

 

 Development and agreement of the masterplan for the Sports Village and the acquisition of Green Banks interest within the Sports Village 

 Delivery of the hybrid planning permission for Atlantic Wharf, inclusive of detailed planning for the new 17,000 capacity Indoor Arena 

 Cabinet approval for the Canal Quarter framework report with regards to the future of the current Motorpoint Arena. 

 Planning permission for the new state of the art Velodrome at the Sports village. 
  

P
age 34



 

Page 8 of 53 

Parks, Sport, Harbour Authority & Leisure 
 

 Capital and Section 106 Programme delivered £2.3 Million of improvements to play areas and parks infrastructure. 

 The Physical Activity and Sport Strategy approved by Cabinet in January 2022. 

 Increased the number of Green Flag Parks and Green Spaces across the city to fifteen. 

 Launch of the Coed Caerdydd project resulting in an increase in number of trees planted in excess of 350% when compared to the historical 
norm.   

 The updated Allotment Strategy for Cardiff 2022-2027, developed in conjunction with a stakeholder group and reflecting the outcomes 
from a tenants consultation exercise. 

 
County Estates 

 

 Co-ordination of the Council’s workplace response to COVID-19 including Infection prevention and control arrangements, Risk Assessments, 
PPE, reporting and Incident Management, mental health and wellbeing support. 

 Property Strategy 2021/26.  Cabinet approved a new strategy setting out the property objectives and targets to achieve over the next five 
years.  The strategy builds on established priorities such as efficiency, income and capital receipts.  But acknowledges new corporate 
objectives such as modernisation of the estate, hybrid working and carbon reduction in the built environment. 

 PDD and PS - Delivery of school asset maintenance schemes by PDD and Building Services 

 Capital Del – PSC Contract for Fairwater Campus has been awarded. This will be the first Net Zero Carbon school in Cardiff, delivered under 
the 21st Century Sustainable Communities Band B Programme. 

 We are on track to complete the new £64m Fitzalan High School by February 2023. This will be the first school to be completed under the 
21st Century Sustainable Communities Band B Programme. 

 Move of essential staff from Wilcox House to County Hall and development of Hybrid workspaces to support the programme of change post 
pandemic.  

 
Culture, Venues & Events  

 

 The successful conclusion of the New Theatre property lease to HQ Theatres & Hospitality with the venue reopening on the 19 September 
with the new operators reporting similar positive trends in patrons response to tickets and attendance.  

 The successful transfer of the Norwegian Church to the Welsh Norwegian Society. 

 Delivery of the Live & Unlocked initiative in Cardiff Castle to support the reopening of the live music venues in the City. 

 Securing WWE Event for September 2022. 

P
age 35



 

Page 9 of 53 

Challenges and Risks? 
 
Recycling Neighbourhood Services and Shared Regulatory Services 
 

 Meeting the recycling performance target of 70% by 2024/25 – the City needs to be recycling at 70% by 1st April 2024. 

 Removal of single used plastic comingled recycling bags from our service. 

 Our budgets are sensitive to market fluctuations in prices for recycled material and costs relating to service provision, such as bins, bags 
and fuel. 

 Trade Union support to deliver change to improve services and recycling performance. 

 Emerging legislation relating to trade recycling, extended producer responsibility and deposit return schemes. 

 Electrical Infrastructure to support the move to ULEV fleet. 

 Increase in costs to change fleet to ULEV fleet – currently supported by Welsh Government. 

 Recruitment of skilled Officers within Shared Regulatory Services. 
 
Economic Development 

 

 Post COVID ‘bounce’ may not last – economic uncertainty around prices persist 

 Recruitment issues hampering recovery 

 Complex economic development environment 
 
Major Projects 

 

 Volatility of the construction market in terms of labour and material price increases.  Note, the Arena has seen a £45 million cost increase 
due to inflation 

 Managing utilities, in particular, the power requirements to allow development of the city not only for major projects but development in 
general (urgent consideration required currently between the Heat Network project and Arena project in regards to Atlantic Wharf) 

 The Council’s ability to attract staff to enable major projects to be developed and managed as required by the current programme. 
  

P
age 36



 

Page 10 of 53 

Parks, Sport, Harbour Authority & Leisure 
 

 Rising costs in utilities and the impact on Sport/Leisure facilities and GLL contract. 

 Rising cost and availability of materials / equipment to deliver the Parks Capital Programme. 

 The services response to anti-social behaviour and vandalism in some areas which have given rise to concerns regarding public safety in 
parks.     

 The risks posed by Ash die back, in terms of safety, cost, loss of tree canopy and biodiversity, over time. 

 The cumulative impacts of Brexit, the pandemic and energy crisis in respective of costs / supply chain issues.   
 
County Estates 

 

 Ensuring viability of the target to reduce estate running cost over the course of the strategy in light of rapidly increasing energy costs.   

 Managing uncertainty around quantum and timing of transactions towards Capital Receipts target. 

 Leased estate challenges, including reduction Covid rent arrears and meeting income targets. 

 Delivery of the schools and non-schools asset programmes in parallel with the implementation of a number of key change initiatives: 
PDD/BS restructure; implementation of new job management software and the procurement of the third generation of non-domestic 
building maintenance frameworks. 

 Ongoing challenges in maintaining the Core Office estate in a condition which is fit for purpose. 

 Cap del - Cardiff Council are yet to secure a completed lease with CAVC for the works at Fitzalan new school site.  

 There are some land matters to be resolved with to deliver the new Cathays high school and St Mary the Virgin Church in Wales Primary 
School.  

 LDP projects delayed due to COVID-19 resulting in schools not being ready for occupation as planned. Mitigation has included temporary 
accommodation at St Mellons for nursery intake, in order to provide the required school places provided for September 2022, and we are 
working closer with Developers on other LDP schemes at Junction 33 and Churchlands. 

 
Culture, Venues & Events  

 

 Risks associated with cost of food and delivery impacting on profit margins 

 Cost of living increases impacting on disposable incomes which in turn impacts on ticket purchases 

 COVID impact on staff availability to support deliver of shows and projects and ongoing cancellation of shows 

 Skills shortage in hospitality and security sectors 

 Impact of failing asset on commercial contracts e.g St David’s Hall lifts/Escalators and City Hall boiler. 

P
age 37



 

Page 11 of 53 

Areas of Focus / Priorities over the next 3 to 6 months? 
 
Recycling Neighbourhood Services and Shared Regulatory Services 

 

 Commence the programme to deliver household segregated recycling and restriction to residual to improve recycling performance. 

 Cleansing in high density areas of Houses of Multiple Occupancy (HMO’s) and education & engagement for students. 

 Improving the management and maintenance of infrastructure assets, including landfills. 

 Trade waste improvements in terms of delivering segregated recycling. 

 Improving quarterly performance of food and trading standards inspections by Shared Regulatory Services following Covid pandemic  
 
Economic Development 

 

 Levelling Up agenda 

 Collaborative working with Cardiff Capital Region (CCR) and Welsh Government 

 City Centre recovery 
 
Major Projects 

 

 Conclusion of the Development Funding Agreement for the Arena (by June / July) 

 Commencement of the Land Disposal Strategy for ISV to meet the revenue requirements for the acquisition of the residual of Green Banks 
asset and the ending of the Development Agreement. 

 Decision on Core Office requirement and heritage estate. 

 Decision on the future of County Hall linked to delivery of the Arena and planning obligations associated with the hybrid planning permission 
decision for Atlantic Wharf. 

 Securing finance and staff to progress the major projects portfolio. 

 Decision on delivery of Lloyd George Avenue project linked to obligations from the Arena and delivery of the new Metro infrastructure. 
 
Parks, Sport, Harbour Authority & Leisure 

 

 Communicating the Physical Activity and Sport Strategy ensuring all key stakeholders deliver actions. 

 Developing the Parks Capital Programme for parks playgrounds and infrastructure projects. 

 Delivering the recommendations from the Local Partnerships Review of the Leisure Contract with GLL. 

P
age 38



 

Page 12 of 53 

 Progressing plans to increase further, tree canopy across the city and through the Coed Caerdydd project, with a particular focus on land in 
private ownership.   

 Implementation of the new structural arrangements for the Parks Management area, designed to address current and emerging pressures, 
challenges and opportunities. 

 Review and negotiations for a revised Section 165 Agreement and financial settlement ( 23/24 -24/25 ) with Welsh Government, for Cardiff 
Harbour Authority.  

 
County Estates 

 

 Implementation of carbon benchmarking systems to accurately monitor change in carbon output over time.   

 Developing and resourcing a carbon reduction plan for the built environment covering the short, medium and long term. 

 Maintenance priorities for Core Office Estate, linked to current condition surveys. 

 Implementation of the restructure and merger of Building Service and PD&D to ensure the service trades sustainably, without subsidy in 
future years. 

 Transfer of Statutory Obligations delivery from a traded to core funded service under the Corporate Landlord Programme, to ensure all 
Council Buildings are subject to the required statutory testing regime. 

  COVID-19 - Ensure preparedness in the event a response to VOC’s is required within Council Workplaces/premises and wider Social Care 
Sector.   

 Monitor and support increased need for counselling and wellbeing support following the pandemic. 

 Commence review of work-related stress across Council workplaces. 
 
Culture, Venues & Events  

 

 Reviewing London Bridge Plans, reflecting national infrastructure and staffing demands. 

 Developing a new post COVID events strategy for the city which reflects the new Welsh Government Strategy (scheduled for release in July 
2022) and re-establishing the Events Focus Group to assist in the curation of the Capital’s events Calendar 

 Development of an Operational Business Case for St David’s Hall for Cabinet consideration in September 2022 

 Delivery of WWE in September 2022 

 Development of the city’s signature international music festival for 2023, with launch activity programme for October 2022. 

 Supporting the development of the UK & I Euros 2028 Bid 

 Close monitoring of the budget position and potential business failures which would impact on our outturn position to implement 
mitigations where possible at the earliest opportunity. 

P
age 39



 

Page 13 of 53 

 
Waste Collection Vehicle                                                                                            Cardiff Castle                                                                                        Indoor Arena    

 
Parks Services                                                                                                                                          Cleaning Services  

P
age 40



 

Page 14 of 53 

4. Well-being Objective 1:  Cardiff is a great place to grow up 

Sub Heading: Continuing to deliver the Cardiff 2030 vision for education and learning 
 

Ref Steps 
Responsible 

Officer* 
Key Milestones during 2021/22 

*Link to 
Equality 

Objective 
CP Deliver enhancements to the school estate 

through a rolling programme of asset 
renewal and target investment in schools 
that require priority action by March 2023 
 

David Lowe Q1  Deliver the target list of priority asset improvement projects 
by March 2023. 

 
Q2 

Q3 

Q4 

DDP Local Action 
(supporting 
Education) 

Continuing to deliver the Cardiff 2030 
vision for education and learning 

 Deliver the new community 
focused building and sports 
facilities for Fitzalan High School on 
the Leckwith site and oversee 
works on main school 

Julie Holmes Q1  Complete snagging on the Enabling works by June 2022, 
working with Education and Strategic Estates to secure the 
new lease for Cardiff and Vale College (CAVC) and House of 
Sport (HoS) 

 

Q2  Commence soft landings with School and the Contractor 
and County Estates to prepare for a smooth transition into 
the new school. 

Q3  Ensure all loose FFE is ordered with the contractor before 
October 2022. 

Q4  Complete handover in line with the accepted Programme 
by March 2023. 

DDP Local Action 
(supporting 
Education) 

 Deliver three new schools, i.e. 
Cantonian, Woodlands and 
Riverbank included within the 
Fairwater campus 

Mian Saleem Q1  Work with various contractor and technical advisory teams 
to progress the enabling works design. 

 

Q2  Seek statutory approvals for the enabling works. 

Q3  Award enabling works contract. 

Q4  Start on site on Fairwater Campus enabling works by March 
2023 

 Provide additional special school accommodation at 
Woodlands, Riverbank, the Court and Greenhill 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 41

https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf


 

Page 15 of 53 

Ref Steps 
Responsible 

Officer* 
Key Milestones during 2021/22 

*Link to 
Equality 

Objective 
 Deliver the new community 

focused St. Mary the Virgin 
Primary School 
 
(Agreed at CL Q1 Performance 
Meeting with Donna Jones on 14th 
June 2021 – Mutual Investment 
Schools to be removed from DDP 
and SMTV added.  Mian to lead) 

 

Mian Saleem Q1  Work with the internal team to Include Net Zero Carbon 
requirement into the design. 

 Continue progress with the design and tender package.  

 

Q2 

Q3  Review and finalise design and tender package 

 Go out to tender. Q4 

CP  
S1.8 

Deliver the new schemes in accordance 
with the Band B 21st Century School 
Programme of school investment between 
April 2019 and 2026 to:  

 Reshape and enhance specialist 
provision for pupils with additional 
learning needs 

 

Julie Holmes Q1  Update feasibility and review Greenhill sites with Education.  

 RIBA 2 report for the Court  

 

Q2  Support Education with Statutory Consultation to secure 
statutory determination for the Court in line with the new 
ALN Vision. 

 Prepare ITT for Ty Glas Demolition for Greenhill. 

Q3  Commence on site demolition for Ty Glas and consultation 
for Greenhill to update Cabinet on way forward in line with 
SOP Code for March 2023. 

 Prepare ITT for the Court to work towards appoint a 
contractor in 2023/24. 

Q4  Obtain planning permission on the Court School project by 
March 2023 

 Obtain permission to consult on Greenhill Special School by 
March 2023 

DDP Local Action 
(supporting 
Education) 

 Deliver the new Willows High 
School for Splott and Tremorfa 

Julie Holmes Q1  Continue visioning and school engagement for RIBA 2. 

 

Q2  Clear and secure the site as current tenants provide vacant 
possession and complete the RIBA 2 report to support 
Business Case to Welsh Government. 

Q3  PAC and planning approval for demolition ahead of the ITT 
to appoint the contractor.  

Q4  Appoint a contractor to design and build the Willows High 
School project by March 2023 
 

P
age 42

https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf


 

Page 16 of 53 

Ref Steps 
Responsible 

Officer* 
Key Milestones during 2021/22 

*Link to 
Equality 

Objective 
 Deliver new Cathays High School 

under WGs Mutual Investment 
Model 

Mian Saleem Q1  Work with the internal, SOP, SED and Legal teams as well as 
with Gleeds to collate all info required to submit New 
Project Request to WG. 

 Q2  Continue  working on the New Project Request. 

 Submit Strategic Outline Business Case and New Project 
Request to WG. 

Q3  Work with Gleeds team to further refine project details. 

CP  
S1.11 

Deliver up to eight new primary schools 
and two new secondary schools by 2030 
through the Local Development Plan in line 
with any Section 106 agreements and 
statutory approvals.  

 
(The 2021/22 programme includes Plasdŵr, 
St Edeyrn’s and Junction 33).   
 
 

Mian Saleem 
/ Julie Holmes 

Q1  Work with the Developers and multi-disc team to monitor 
progress and quality on the construction works.  

 Work with the developer and Education on Groeswen 
Primary and award the contract.  

 Work with interla SOP and Planning teams to draft HoTs for 
the new Cardiff North East school site.  

 Agree specification with developer for Junction 33 with the 
NZC enhancement. 

 Agree the site and outline specification with the developer 
for Churchlands. 

 

Q2  Continue Working with the Developer and multi-disc team 
to monitor progress and quality on the construction works.  

 Work with the developer and Education on Groeswen 
Primary and start construction works on site.  

 Work with Education and the developer and complete RIBA 
Stage 4 design on Groeswen Primary. 

 Work with Multi Disciplinary consultants to support the 
detailed specification of Junction 33 and Churchlands 
development. 

Q3  Continue working with the developer during construction 
stage to deliver St. Edeyrns Primary. 

 Continue working with the developer during construction 
stage to deliver Groeswen Primary School, working with 
SOP to deliver the dual language model. 

 Agree timescales for Junction 33 with Developer  
 
 

P
age 43

https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf


 

Page 17 of 53 

Ref Steps 
Responsible 

Officer* 
Key Milestones during 2021/22 

*Link to 
Equality 

Objective 
Q4  Continue working with the developer during construction 

stage to deliver St. Edeyrns Primary by March 2023 

 Continue working with the developer during construction 
stage to commence on site at Groeswen Primary School by 
March 2023. 

 Agree outline specification for Junction 33 by March 2023 

 Agree outline specification for Churchlands by March 2023 

 
  

P
age 44

https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf


 

Page 18 of 53 

5. Well-being Objective 4:  Safe, Confident and Empowered Communities 

Sub Heading: Building new Council homes and investing in community facilities 
 

Ref Steps 
Responsible 

Officer* 
Key Milestones during 2021/22 

*Link to 
Equality 

Objective 
CP Drive up standards in the private rented 

housing sector by: 
• Undertaking robust enforcement 

action to deal with rogue agents 
and landlords letting and managing 
properties. 

Helen Picton Q1 Where appropriate, take forward prosecutions for offences relating 
to housing standards, HMO licensing and Rent Smart Wales. 

 

Q2 

Q3 

Q4 

 

 
  

Ref Key Performance Indicators 
2019/20 
Result 

2020/21 
Result 

2021/22 
Result 

2022/23 
Target 

Owner 

SRS/PSH1/004 
The number of Category 1 hazards removed from private sector 
properties following intervention from Shared Regulatory Services 

103 22 
TBC (this will 

always be a year 
behind) 

100 Will Lane 

P
age 45

https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf


 

Page 19 of 53 

Sub Heading: Working together to support a healthier and more active population 
 

Ref Steps 
Responsible 

Officer* 
Key Milestones during 2021/22 

*Link to 
Equality 

Objective 
CP • Deliver the Shared Regulatory 

Services’ Business Plan 2022/23. 
Helen Picton Q1 Deliver the programme outlined in the Shared Regulatory Services 

Business Plan 2022/23 in relation to environmental health, trading 
standards and licensing functions.  

Q2 

Q3 

Q4 

 

 
  

Ref 
Key Performance Indicators 

 
2019/20 
Result 

2020/21 
Result 

2021/22 
Result 

2022/23 
Target 

Owner 

PAM/023 (Formerly 
PPN/009) 

The percentage of food establishments which achieve a food 
hygiene standard rating of 3 or above 

94.84% 95.41% 95.74% 94% Christina Hill 

P
age 46

https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf


 

Page 20 of 53 

Ref Steps 
Responsible 

Officer* 
Key Milestones during 2021/22 

*Link to 
Equality 

Objective 
CP Support grass-roots and community sports 

by: 
• Embedding the new Physical 

Activity & Sport Strategy 2022-27, 
and working with partners to 
develop further plans through 
2022/23 that increase 
participation, attract investment, 
improve health, tackle inequality, 
and ensure sustainability of 
provision; 

Steve Morris Q1  Review Q1 report from the leadership board, report and 
progress issues/actions. 

 

Q2  Hold launch strategy event.  Review Q2 report from the 
leadership board, report and progress issues / actions. 

Q3  Review Q3 report from the leadership board, report and 
progress issues / actions. 

Q4  Produce end of year report for year one of the strategy. 

• Supporting access to local 
community sports clubs and 
organisations, increasing 
participation in sports and 
enhancing extra-curricular 
opportunities through the 
Community-Focused Schools 
approach; 

Steve Morris Q1  Through the Joint Venture with Cardiff Metropolitan 
University report against the local sport and physical 
activity plan. 

 

Q2  Through the Joint Venture with Cardiff Metropolitan 
University report against the local sport and physical 
activity plan. 

Q3  Through the Joint Venture with Cardiff Metropolitan 
University report against the local sport and physical 
activity plan. 

Q4  Through the Joint Venture with Cardiff Metropolitan 
University report end of year position against the local sport 
and physical activity plan. 

• Supporting community sports clubs 
with a particular emphasis on 
underrepresented groups such as 
women and girls, ethnic minority 
communities, Welsh speakers, 
disabled people, and the LGBT+ 
community; 

Steve Morris Q1  Develop criteria for the new Capital Grants Scheme to 
support club ambitions to develop facilities. 

 
Q2  Report on scheme delivery. 

Q3  Report on scheme delivery. 

Q4  Report on scheme delivery. 

• Ensuring that Sport Wales’s 
Regional Sports Partnerships 
reflect the priorities of Cardiff. 

Steve Morris Q1  Host Central South Regional Meeting to explore options for 
disaggregation. 

 Prepare options paper for a Cardiff and Vale Health Board 
region, 

 seeking support from the Vale of Glamorgan Council for a 

 

P
age 47

https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf


 

Page 21 of 53 

Ref Steps 
Responsible 

Officer* 
Key Milestones during 2021/22 

*Link to 
Equality 

Objective 
joint approach. 

Q2  Ongoing collaboration with the regional leads and Sport 
Wales to feed in Cardiff Strategic priorities. 

Q3  Set milestones for implementation of tender process for the 
new governance / operation. 

Q4  Sport Wales to appoint new operator 

CP Maintain the long-term future 
sustainability of our leisure centres by: 
• Implementing the recommendations that 
are agreed in response to the review of the 
Leisure Services contract with GLL; 

Steve Morris Q1  Participate in Audit Wales Review and prepare Cabinet 
Report for Q2 submission.  

 

Q2  Table Cabinet Report to seek approval of the 
recommendations from the Local Partnerships review. 
Develop action plan for implementation. 

Q3  Remove Pentwyn Leisure Centre from the contact and make 
contract variation.  

 Report progress against action plan. 

Q4  Report progress against action plan. 

CP • Implementing the planned improvements 
to Pentwyn Leisure Centre. 

Steve Morris Q1  Carry out ecology surveys and professional services 

 Review Cardiff Rugby Business Plan  

 Investigate best operating models 

 Extend licence to occupy for CRFC with GLL 
 Q2  Prepare ODR for capital scheme based on final outcomes of 

surveys and estimated costs. 

Q3  Procure a contractor 

Q4  Appoint contractor 

CP Improve our parks and public spaces by: 
• Growing the number of parks in 

Cardiff which receive the Green 
Flag Award – the international 
standard for the management of 
parks and green spaces, with the 
inclusion of parks within the 
southern arc; 

Jon Maidment Q1  Facilitate assessment exercise for existing and the new site 
submitted for 2022, Hendre Lake. 

 

Q2  Undertake self-assessment exercise to determine 2023 
submission and commence process of management plan 
development. 

Q3  Finalise management plans for resubmission and new flag. 

Q4  Submit management plans for assessment. 

 Working with partners to 
implement a plan to increase 

Jon Maidment Q1  Review of activity from 21/22 Programme and refine 
scoping exercise. 

 

P
age 48

https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf


 

Page 22 of 53 

Ref Steps 
Responsible 

Officer* 
Key Milestones during 2021/22 

*Link to 
Equality 

Objective 
Cardiff’s tree canopy from 18.9% to 
25% by 2030 and to report annual 
progress against this target; 

Q2  Conduct local ward member and private landowner 
engagement exercises. 

Q3  Finalise delivery plan for 22/23 programme and commence 

Q4  Complete 22/23 programme and report on progress. 

• Delivering the actions from the 
Allotment Strategy 2022-27; 

Jon Maidment Q1  Establish stakeholder review group and facilitate the first 
meeting. 

 
Q2  Report on actions set out in delivery plan. 

Q3  Report on actions set out in delivery plan. 

Q4  Report on actions set out in the delivery plan. 

• Promoting the benefits and 
supporting the development of the 
volunteer movement, through the 
Friends Forum and community-
based platforms; 
 

Jon Maidment Q1  Complete recruitment to new posts funded through 
revenue policy growth aimed at supporting activity. 

 Report progress on Q1 Activity  
 

Q2  Report progress on Q2 Activity  

Q3  Report progress on Q3 Activity  

Q4  Report Progress on Q3 Activity  

• Implementing a programme of 
Section 106, Asset Renewal and 
Capital for Parks to include sport, 
play and infrastructure 
improvements; 

Steve Morris  Q1  Produce the 22/23 programme identifying the estimated 
total expenditure for the year and fee income associated 
with the schemes. 

 Share programme with Cabinet Member and establish 
quarterly review meetings 

 Q2  Ward member roadshows to discuss Section 106 projects. 

 Produce a design vision for the city for the Playground and 
Infrastructure programme 

Q3  Report on progress against schemes including expenditure 
and fees 

Q4  End of year report 

• Working in partnership with Welsh 
Water to bring the Llanishen 
Reservoir site back into use for 
sailing and other recreational 
purposes. 

Jon Maidment Q1  Footpath trail construction works commence. 

 

Q2  Footpath construction complete. 

Q3  Commence substantive planting programme. 

Q4  Complete substantive planting programme. 

 Visitor hub building completed, signage / interpretation 

P
age 49

https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf


 

Page 23 of 53 

Ref Steps 
Responsible 

Officer* 
Key Milestones during 2021/22 

*Link to 
Equality 

Objective 
installed and full mobilisation for public access / volunteer 
activity. 

CP Support the development of a National 
Park City for Cardiff through the creation 
of local networks and the partnership of the 
National Park City Foundation. 

Jon Maidment Q1  Support the work of the Management Committee in 
achieving Charitable Incorporated Organisation status. 

 Q2  Achieve Charitable Incorporated Organisation status. 

Q3  Report progress 

Q4  Report progress 

 

 
  

Ref 
Key Performance Indicators 

 
2019/20 
Result 

2020/21 
Result 

2021/22 
Result 

2022/23 
Target 

Owner 

PAM/017 (was 
LCS/002 (b)) 

The number of visits to Local Authority sport and leisure centres 
during the year per 1,000 population where the visitor will be 
participating in physical activity 

7,596.12 919.71 5,008.41 
Monitor KPI, 
but no target 

set 
Steve Morris 

*SLC10 The number of Green Flag parks and open spaces 12 14 15 16 
Jon 

Maidment 

PS100(a) The number of volunteer hours committed to parks and green spaces 19,111 1,665 16,238 
Monitor KPI, 
but no target 

set 

Jon 
Maidment 

P
age 50

https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf


 

Page 24 of 53 

Well-being Objective 5:  A Capital City that Works for Wales  
Sub Heading: Leading the economic recovery in Wales 
 

Ref Steps 
Responsible 

Officer* 
Key Milestones during 2021/22 

*Link to 
Equality 

Objective 
CP Work with the Cardiff Capital Region City 

Deal to progress Cardiff projects, support 
wider city-region projects and input into 
any Corporate Joint Committee transition 
arrangements to support the regional 
Covid-19 recovery strategy. 

Jon Day Q2  Work with Cardiff Capital Region (CCR) establishing Shared 
Prosperity Fund (SPF) regional response 

 Q4  Support transition to Corporate Joint Committee (CJC) 

CP Work with the UK Government and Welsh 
Government to implement a programme of 
investments to deliver investment and 
capacity improvements to support the 
delivery of the Council’s Transport White 
Paper. 

Jon Day Q1  Develop Levelling Up Fund (LUF) bid for City Centre Bay link 

 

Q2  Submit application 

CP Ensure Cardiff remains an open, 
competitive and outward-looking 
international 
city by: 

• Continuing to work with the Cardiff 
Capital Region, the Welsh 
Government, the Western 
Gateway and the UK Government 
to promote the city as a place to 
invest; 

Ken Poole Q1  Attend UKEIFF with CCR and WG 

 

Q2  Establish new MIPIM arrangements for 2023 

Q4  Attend MIPIM 

• Ensuring the city benefits from 
Welsh and UK Government funding 
schemes such as the Shared 
Prosperity Fund. 

Jon Day Q1  Develop working arrangements with region 

 

Q2  Agree contribution to Regional Investment Plan 

Q3  Establish Shared Prosperity Fund (SPF) delivery 
arrangements 

Q4  Monitor and evaluate SPF delivery 

 
  

P
age 51

https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf


 

Page 25 of 53 

Sub Heading: Leading a recovery programme for the City Centre and Bay 

 

Ref Steps 
Responsible 

Officer* 
Key Milestones during 2021/22 

*Link to 
Equality 

Objective 
CP Enhance the city centre as a location for 

businesses and investment and reassert its 
role as a regional employment centre by 
working with partners to: 

• Progress the development of 
Metro Central; 

Ken Poole / 
Neil Hanratty? 

Q1  

 

Q2  

Q3  

Q4  

• Progress the Central Quay 
development, extending the 
business district south of the 
station; 

Neil Hanratty Q1  

 
Q2  

Q3  

Q4  

• Support the development of new 
commercial premises that respond 
to the post- Covid demand for 
workspace; 

Ken Poole Q1  Review Shared Prosperity Fund (SPF) for potential support 

 Q2  Establish SPF fund to aid investment in commercial 
premises 

• Work with partners to implement 
the City Centre Recovery Action 
Plan; 

Ken Poole / 
Jon Day 

Q1  Establish new support mechanisms for city centre business 
through Shared Prosperity Fund (SPF) 

 Q2  

Q3  

Q4  

• Establish new city centre 
management arrangements; 

Ken Poole / 
Jon Day 

Q1  Agree new structure 

 Q2  Appoint new staff for new working arrangements and agree 
JET model 

• Deliver the Canal Quarter. Chris Barnett Q1  Progress upon conclusion of the DFA for the new Arena 

 
Q2 

Q3 

Q4 

 
 

P
age 52

https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf


 

Page 26 of 53 

Ref Steps 
Responsible 

Officer* 
Key Milestones during 2021/22 

*Link to 
Equality 

Objective 
CP Write the next chapter in Cardiff Bay’s 

regeneration story by: 
• Delivering the new Multi-Purpose 

Indoor Arena by 2024/25; 

Chris Barnett Q1  Signing Development Funding Agreement (DFA) 

 

Q2 

Q3  Financial close  

 Enter contract 

Q4  Commence work on site 

• Working with partners to establish 
a new Metro route linking Cardiff 
Central to the Bay, and bring 
forward new stations to connect 
communities and regeneration 
opportunities; 

Jon Day Q1  Develop LUF bid for City Centre Bay link 

 

Q2  Submit application 

• Progressing a development 
strategy for the next phase of the 
International Sports Village; 

John Worrall Q1  Commence land disposal  

 

Q2  Secure land disposals 

 Complete Full Business Case for the Velodrome, MX and 
Closed Loop Circuit 

Q3  Conclude Green Bank acquisition 

• Bringing forward proposals to 
protect and revitalise historic 
buildings in the Bay. 

Ken Poole Q1  Assist the completion of the Merchant Place development  
 

Q2  Submit funding application for Cardiff Market 

 

 
  

Ref 
Key Performance Indicators 

 
2019/20 
Result 

2020/21 
Result 

2021/22 
Result 

2022/23 
Target 

Owner 

ED005-Q(a) 
The amount of ‘Grade A’ office space committed to in Cardiff -SqFt 
(This is a rolling two-year target.) 

361,000 0 235,719 300,000 Ken Poole 

P
age 53

https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf


 

Page 27 of 53 

Sub Heading: Supporting innovation and business development, with an enhanced package of interventions to help the sectors worst affected by 
the pandemic 

 

Ref Steps 
Responsible 

Officer* 
Key Milestones during 2021/22 

*Link to 
Equality 

Objective 
CP Develop a sustainable city-wide post-Covid 

economy by: 
• Supporting the completion of 

Cardiff Parkway as part of our 
Industrial Strategy for the East of 
the city; 

Jon Day? Q1  

 

Q2  

Q3  

Q4  

• Working with City Deal partners, 
the private sector and the 
University Health Board to explore 
proposals for the creation of a 
Science Park Campus at Coryton; 

Ken Poole Q1  

 
Q2  

Q3  

Q4  

• Working with Cardiff Clwstwr 
Creadigol to support the growth of 
creative enterprises in the city; 

Jon Day Q1  Approve new facilities as part of the media. Cymru Strength 
in Places (SIP) bid 

 

Q2  Attend management and relevant meetings to promote SIP 
project 

Q3  Attend management and relevant meetings to promote SIP 
project 

Q4  Attend management and relevant meetings to promote SIP 
project 

• Working with partners to attract 
investment into innovation and 
start-up space across the city and 
support the sector in adapting to 
the requirements of a post-Covid 
economy 

Ken Poole Q1  Promote city at UKREIIF and other events 

 

Q4  Attend MIPIM 2023 

• Establishing a ’15-minute city 
toolkit’ to accelerate district centre 
regeneration, including housing- 
and transport-led improvements 
 

Ken Poole Q1  Work with Planning, Transport & Environment directorate 
to draft toolkit 

 Q2  Adopt toolkit 

P
age 54

https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf


 

Page 28 of 53 

Ref Steps 
Responsible 

Officer* 
Key Milestones during 2021/22 

*Link to 
Equality 

Objective 
CP Establish Cardiff as a Smart City, where 

digital technologies and data are seamlessly 
used to enhance the lives of people and 
support recovery, by adopting the new 
Smart City roadmap by December 2022. 
 

Jon Day Q1  Develop scope of Smart City Roadmap 

 

Q2  Consult with key stakeholders 

Q3  Deliver roadmap 

CP Work with partners to support the retail 
and hospitality sectors in successfully re-
emerging from lockdown by: 

• Continuing to work with partners, 
including FOR Cardiff, to adapt and 
re-purpose the city for post-Covid 
recovery; 

Ken Poole Q1  Work with partners / attend BID board meetings 

 

Q2 

Q3 

Q4 

• Enhancing the promotion of Cardiff 
as a visitor destination by 
establishing a new events strategy 
and investment in visitor 
infrastructure; 

Jon Day Q1  Agree new CBEP arrangements 

 
Q2  Draft new Tourism Strategy 

Q3  Agree new Tourism Strategy  

Q4  Delivery new Tourism Strategy  

• Working with Welsh Government 
to establish a tax and regulatory 
environment that can accelerate 
recovery. 

Jon Day Q1  Submit proposals to Welsh Government 

 
Q2  Develop and implement with CCR 

 

  

Ref 
Key Performance Indicators 

 
2019/20 
Result 

2020/21 
Result 

2021/22 
Result 

2022/23 
Target 

Owner 

EEI001-Q(a) / 
EEI001-Q(b) 

The number of new jobs created and safeguarded where the 
Council has played an active role 

2,254 1,845 2,102 1,000 Ken Poole 

CCM001 City centre footfall 43,448,308 15,912,899 40,490,196 
Monitor KPI, but 

no target set 
Ken Poole 

P
age 55

https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf


 

Page 29 of 53 

Sub Heading:  Supporting the recovery of the cultural sector and major events programme 

 

Ref Steps 
Responsible 

Officer* 
Key Milestones during 2021/22 

*Link to 
Equality 

Objective 
CP Grow Cardiff as a centre of creativity and 

culture by: 
• Supporting the Cardiff Music Board 

to implement the agreed 
recommendations of the Sound 
Diplomacy report, in partnership 
with the Welsh Government by 
March 2023; 

Jon Day Q1  Host Cardiff Music Board meeting 

 

Q2  Host Cardiff Music Board meeting 

Q3  Host Cardiff Music Board meeting 

Q4  Provide update on Strategy 

• Considering development and 
investment opportunities for St 
David’s Hall to retain its position as 
a world-class auditorium; 

Kathryn 
Richards 

Q1  Undertake consultation on OBC for future of St David’s Hall 

 
Q2  Cabinet to consider St David’s Hall Options 

Q3  Implement Cabinet Decision 

Q4  Implement Cabinet Decision 

• Developing a Cultural City Compact 
approach with the cultural sector 
as a means for taking forward a 
new Cultural Strategy for Cardiff by 
March 2023. 

Jon Day Q1  

 
Q2  Draft Cultural Compact 

Q3  Consult on Cultural Compact 

Q4  Approve Cultural Compact  

CP Work with event promoters and the city’s 
cultural venues to rebuild the capital’s 
event and cultural offer, reflecting the 
ongoing Covid-19 challenges, by: 

• Developing a new post-Covid 
Events Strategy with Welsh 
Government to champion and 
reinvigorate the event sector, 
including establishing a home-
grown focused events sector that 
delivers a sustainable programme 
of events, supporting our own 
businesses in developing our visitor 
economy; 

Kathryn 
Richards 

Q1  Review Welsh Government Revised Event Strategy (July 
2022) 

 

Q2  Re-Establish the Event Focus Group Forum and consult on 
Council’s Revised Draft Events Strategy 

Q3  Cabinet to consider Draft Events Strategy 

Q4  Implement Agreed Events Strategy 

P
age 56

https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf


 

Page 30 of 53 

Ref Steps 
Responsible 

Officer* 
Key Milestones during 2021/22 

*Link to 
Equality 

Objective 
• Developing an annual international 

music festival in the city, with the 
view to becoming a fixture on the 
city’s events calendar that supports 
the local cultural sector; 

Jon Day Q1  Submit application to WG for funding 

 
Q2  Agree 2023 event with WG 

Q3  Deliver 2022 initial ‘launch’ event 

Q4  

• Working in partnership with the 
Welsh and UK Governments to 
attract a new major international 
sporting event to Cardiff. 

Kathryn 
Richards 

Q1  Work with WG & Event Delivery Partners to review 
technical event spec 

 

Q2  Support WG and Event Delivery Partners in developing 
Preliminary Bid Dossier 

Q3  Support Site Visits and submission of Preliminary Bid 
Dossier 

Q4  Support development of Final Bid Dossier 

 

 
  

Ref 
Key Performance Indicators 

 
2019/20 
Result 

2020/21 
Result 

2021/22 
Result 

2022/23 
Target 

Owner 

PED013 The number of staying visitors 2,190,000 640,000 TBC 
Monitor KPI, but 

no target set 
Jon Day 

ECR15a Total visitor numbers 21,490,000 8,260,000 TBC 
Monitor KPI, but 

no target set 
Jon Day 

ECR15b Total (staying) visitor days 4,800,000 1,510,000 TBC 
Monitor KPI, but 

no target set 
Jon Day 

ED020 Attendance at Council venues 979,591 174,286 587,757 
Monitor KPI, but 

no target set 
Kathryn 
Richards 

P
age 57

https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf


 

Page 31 of 53 

Well-being Objective 6:  Cardiff Grows in a Resilient Way 

Sub Heading:  Transforming Cardiff’s public transport and active travel systems 
 

Ref Steps 
Responsible 

Officer* 
Key Milestones during 2021/22 

*Link to 
Equality 

Objective 
CP Programme the delivery of the bridge 

crossing scheme at Llanrumney as part of a 
wider regeneration scheme, completing 
design and planning permissions by June 
2022 and delivery commencing summer 
2022. 

Chris Barnett Q2  Planning submission submitted for Pentwyn Park and Ride 
site 

 Q4  Planning secured  

 Works to commence on site 

 
Sub Heading:  Making Cardiff a world-leading recycling city 
 

Ref Steps 
Responsible 

Officer* 
Key Milestones during 2021/22 

*Link to 
Equality 

Objective 
CP Deliver the recycling services strategy to 

achieve 70% recycling performance by 
2024/25 by:  

• Continuing project work with 
Welsh Government, Waste & 
Resources Action Programme 
(WRAP) and the Welsh Local 
Government Association (WLGA) 
to: 

 Evaluate and improve 
trade recycling 
performance and; 

 Model domestic 
collections and processing 
requirements. 
 
 
 

Matt 
Wakelam 

Q1  Refining modelling and business case for delivery of 
segregated recycling  

 

Q2  Cabinet Report – Recycling Strategy for Cardiff 

Q3  Start the expansion of the segregated recycling pilot from 
4,000 to 22,000 properties. 

Q4  Finalise programme for city-wide segregated recycling to 
households (excluding flats or HMO’s) 

P
age 58

https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf


 

Page 32 of 53 

Ref Steps 
Responsible 

Officer* 
Key Milestones during 2021/22 

*Link to 
Equality 

Objective 
• Undertaking public consultation on 

the draft Recycling Strategy and 
incorporating trial results to 
produce a final draft for approval 
by December 2022 

Matt 
Wakelam 

Q1  

 
Q2  

Q3  

Q4  

CP Reduce the volume of waste, including 
single-use plastics, across Cardiff by: 

• Exploring options to remove 
150,000 waste recycling bags from 
the Council’s waste service by 
December 2022; 

Matt 
Wakelam 

Q1  Refining modelling and business case to remove single use 
comingled recycling bags 

 
Q3  Commence programme of replacement with re-usable 

sacks in 18,000 properties (plus 4,000 in pilot) 

Q4  Finalise programme for city-wide removal of single use 
comingled recycling bags. 

• Working with major venues to 
consider alternatives to single-use 
plastic products. 

Matt 
Wakelam 

Q1  

 
Q2  

Q3  

Q4  

 

  

Ref 
Key Performance Indicators 

 
2019/20 
Result 

2020/21 
Result 

2021/22 
Result 

2022/23 
Target 

Owner 

WMT/015 
The percentage of planned recycling and waste collections 
achieved 

N/A 99.93 % 99.98% 99.9% 
Matt 

Wakelam 

PAM/030 (was 
WMT/009 (b)) 

The percentage of municipal waste collected and prepared for re-
use and/or recycled 

58.14 % 55.80 % 58.19 % ≥64% 
Matt 

Wakelam 

WMT/016 
The percentage of waste collected at recycling centres that has 
been prepared for reuse or recycled 

N/A 85.6% 85% 85% 
Matt 

Wakelam 

NEW The number of Environmental Street Scene investigation actions N/A N/A N/A 25,000 
Matt 

Wakelam 

NEW 

The number of Environmental Street Scene Legal Enforcement 
Actions (with enforcement actions including Fixed Penalty Notices, 
cases which proceed to prosecution, Section 46 or other legal 
notices) 

N/A N/A N/A 12,500 
Matt 

Wakelam 

P
age 59

https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf


 

Page 33 of 53 

Sub Heading:  Working as one team to keep our streets clean 
 

Ref Steps 
Responsible 

Officer* 
Key Milestones during 2021/22 

*Link to 
Equality 

Objective 
CP Deliver a comprehensive programme of 

improvement to the Council’s Street Scene 
services by September 2022 through 
integration, digitalisation and the use of 
data to support the efficient and effective 
use of resources. 

Matt 
Wakelam 

Q1  Love Where You Live (Blitz) teams in Cathays and 
Plasnewydd. 

 
Q2  Consultation on restructure to Cleansing Services. 

Q3  Develop a programme of digital improvements to support 
service delivery. 

Q4  Complete restructure to Cleansing Services.  

 

 
  

Ref Key Performance Indicators 
2019/20 
Result 

2020/21 
Result 

2021/22 
Result 

2022/23 
Target 

Owner 

SC/001a 
The percentage of highways land inspected by the Local Authority 
found to be of a high or acceptable standard of cleanliness 

94.61 % 94.38 % 91.49 % 90% 
Matt 

Wakelam 

SC/001b 
The number of wards in Cardiff where 90% of the highways land 
inspected is of a high or acceptable standard of cleanliness 

N/A 23 21 All 
Matt 

Wakelam 

PAM/011 (Formerly 
STS/006) 

The percentage of reported fly-tipping incidents cleared within five 
working days 

99.03 % 99.38 % 99.47 % 95% 
Matt 

Wakelam 

P
age 60

https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf


 

Page 34 of 53 

Well-being Objective 7:  Modernising and Integrating our Public Services 

Sub Heading:  Developing a comprehensive programme of organisational recovery and renewal 
 

Ref Steps 
Responsible 

Officer* 
Key Milestones during 2021/22 

*Link to 
Equality 

Objective 
CP 

Resources,  
Economic 
Development and 
Performance & 
Partnerships 

Develop a Hybrid Working Model by: 
• Reviewing touchdown spaces and developing a 
touchdown working space model by May 2022; 

Donna  
Jones 

Q1  Working space model designed and applied to the 
Courtyard and level 5 of County Hall.  

 

Q2  Procurement of new desk and room booking system 
accessible to external partners to support Hybrid working 
model as well as support locality working.  

Q3  Hybrid Design Applied to Oak house Development, launch 
of the new desk booking system. 

Q4  Monitor occupancy and utilisation as well as the experience 
of employees.  Continue to review corporate 
accommodation across the estate and implement the 
Hybrid Model where there is demand. 

• Completing a programme of engagement with 
staff and managers by June 2022; 

Donna 
Jones 

Q1  Service Level Change Management Exercise results 
analysed, and high-level report drafted.  Courtyard 
employee drop-in sessions delivered. 

 
Q2  Further engagement sessions to refine requirements to 

support Hybrid Working Business case relating to the Core 
Office. 

• Developing a draft Hybrid Working Policy by 
September 2022; 

Donna 
Jones 

Q1  Service needs analysed to assist with drafting policy, HR, IT 
and accommodation principles to be agreed and included. 

 
Q2  Draft Policy prepared, taking into account scrutiny Home & 

Agile Working Report recommendations. 
• Introducing a Hybrid Working Business Case in 
line with the Core Office Accommodation 
Business Case by October 2022. 

Donna 
Jones 

Q1  Service needs analysed to assist with drafting business case 

 Q2  Further Management & Employee engagement to further 
define corporate accommodation and technology 
requirements, transport and travel information.   

 
  

P
age 61

https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf


 

Page 35 of 53 

Sub Heading:  Delivering leaner and greener Council buildings 

 

Ref Steps 
Responsible 

Officer* 
Key Milestones during 2021/22 

*Link to 
Equality 

Objective 
CP Deliver a leaner and greener estate and protect 

the council’s historic buildings by: 

• Meeting the targets of the One Planet 
Cardiff strategy by reducing the carbon 
footprint in the built environment by 
30% by the end of 2025/26; 

Giles Parker 
/ Mat 

Seymour 

Q1  Develop and resource a carbon reduction plan, 
including benchmarking / measurement, for the built 
environment.  

Q2 

Q3 

Q4  Implement of carbon benchmarking systems.   

• Completing 100% of Priority 1 
programmed asset works to maintain 
Council buildings in a safe compliant 
condition; 

Donna 
Jones /    

Mat 
Seymour 

Q1  Agree a programme of Priority 1 asset renewal works 

 

Q2  Deliver the programme to complete Priority 1 works 

Q3 

Q4 

• Developing a plan to implement the 
hybrid working model in 2022/23, 
utilising Council property assets and 
reducing revenue costs by £6m by the 
end of 2025/26; 

Donna 
Jones / 

Giles Parker 

Q1  Lead on estate asset management planning to 
implement Hybrid Working accommodation 
requirements, including relinquishing surplus 
accommodation.  

 
Q2 

Q3 

Q4 

• Disposing of land and property to 
achieve the £25m general fund capital 
receipts target by the end of 2025/26. 

Giles Parker Q1  Prepare Annual Property Plan (APP) 2022/23 

 
Q2  Report APP 2022/23 to Cabinet for approval. 
Q3  Deliver against Property Strategy and APP targets. 

Q4 

 

Ref 
Key Performance Indicators 

 
2019/20 
Result 

2020/21 
Result 

2021/22 
Result 

2022/23 
Target 

Owner 

NEW 
Reduce the carbon footprint in the built environment 
(Target to be achieved by 2026) N/A N/A N/A 30% Giles Parker 

NEW 
Reduce the annual running cost of the operational property estate 
(Target to be achieved by 2026) N/A N/A N/A £6 million Giles Parker 

NEW The percentage completion of all Priority 1 works N/A N/A N/A 100% Giles Parker 

NEW 
General fund capital receipts 
(Target to be achieved by 2026) N/A N/A N/A 

£6.8m in year / 
£25 m by 2026 

Giles Parker 

P
age 62

https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf


 

Page 36 of 53 

Sub Heading:  Managing the Covid-19 pandemic 

 

Ref Steps 
Responsible 

Officer* 
Key Milestones during 2021/22 

*Link to 
Equality 

Objective 
CP 

Resources, 
Economic 
Development and 
Adults, Housing & 
Communities 

Support an ongoing partnership approach to 
pandemic management, as part of a wider 
programme of comprehensive public protection, 
including: 

• Supporting a surveillance and risk-
based response to incidents and 
outbreaks; 

Donna Jones 
/ Paul James 

Q1  Implement revised Infection Control Measures in line 
with Alert Level 0 

 

Q2  Monitor and support local outbreaks and update 
guidance to schools 

Q3  Monitor any changes to national guidance 

Q4 

• Continuing to manage any clusters and 
outbreaks in high-risk settings. 

Donna 
Jones  
/ Paul 
James 

Q1  Work with Public Health Wales to address any local 
requirements in relation to clusters and outbreaks. 

 

Q2 

Q3 

Q4 

 
 
* Please align steps where relevant to Equality Objectives, the objectives can be found on page 15 of the Equality & Inclusion Strategy 2020-24 
 
  

P
age 63

https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf
https://www.cardiff.gov.uk/ENG/Your-Council/Strategies-plans-and-policies/Equality-diversity-and-cohesion/Strategic-Equality-Plan-and-Policies/Documents/Equality%20Inclusion%20Strategy%202020%202024.pdf


 

Page 37 of 53 

6. Headline Indicators of Corporate Health 
 
The following suite of Corporate KPIs have been identified as important measures of organisational performance, and each Directorate is responsible 
for their own performance in relation to these. The Directorate position is provided below (where data is available historically) and the Corporate 
Position follows on to provide context. 
 

Economic Development Directorate 
 

Ref Key Performance Indicators 2019/20 Result 2020/21 Result 2021/22 Result 2022/23 Target 

Citizen Satisfaction 

CHI 1 Number / Percentage of complaints responded to on time     

 

CHI 2 The number of working days/shifts per full-time equivalent (FTE) local 
authority employee lost due to sickness absence (Corp Plan) 

    

CHI 3 % Sickness Absence Short-term     

CHI 4 % Sickness Absence Long-term     

 

CHI 5 Percentage of staff that have completed a Personal Review (excluding 
school staff)  

    

CHI 6 % of staff completing mandatory training modules (in Corporate Plan):  
Dementia Friendly  

    

CHI 7 % of staff completing mandatory training modules (in Corporate Plan):  
Violence Against Women 

    

CHI 8 % of Council staff completing autism awareness training     

CHI 9 % of staff completing training modules: Welsh language e-learning 
module 

    

CHI 10 % of staff attending beginners Welsh course     

 

CHI 11 % of staff completing mandatory training modules (in Corporate Plan):  
Corporate Safeguarding 

    

CHI 12 Number of referrals from directorates into Children’s services      

CHI 13 Number of referrals from directorates into adult services      

CHI 14 Number of Professional Concerns reported into CS     

P
age 64



 

Page 38 of 53 

Ref Key Performance Indicators 2019/20 Result 2020/21 Result 2021/22 Result 2022/23 Target 

CHI 15 Number of Professional Concerns reported into AS     

 

CHI 16 The % of Welsh Speakers     

CHI 17 Gender Balance     

CHI 18 BME representation     

CHI 19 Total Agency Spend      

CHI 20 The number of apprenticeships and trainee opportunities     

 

CHI 21 The percentage of staff / devices enabled for agile and mobile working.     

 

CHI 22 The percentage of overall spend with Cardiff-based organisation     

CHI 23 The percentage of overall spend with Cardiff Capital Region-based 
organisations. 

   
 

CHI 24 The percentage of overall spend with Welsh-based organisations     

CHI 25 The percentage of new contracts which include social value commitments     

CHI 26 Contract compliance     

CHI 27 Direct Awards       

 

CHI 28 The percentage of statutory compliance for building maintenance for the 
4 high risk disciplines (Fire Safety, Legionella, Gas and Electrical Safety) 
across all Council premises 

    

CHI 29 Workplace accidents and incidents     

 

CHI 30 Percentage of Freedom of Information Requests & Environmental 
Information Regulation Requests responded to within the statutory 
timescales  

    

CHI 31 Percentage of Individual Rights Requests responded to within the 
statutory timescales (Formerly Data Protection Requests) 

    

CHI 32 Number of data breaches     
 
  

P
age 65



 

Page 39 of 53 

Corporate (Council Wide) Position 
 

Ref 
Key Performance Indicators 

(outcome based where possible) 
2019/20 
Result 

2020/21 
Result 

2021/22 
Result 

2022/23 
Target 

Citizen Satisfaction 

CHI 1 Number / Percentage of complaints responded to on time 2,559 TBC   

Workforce – Sickness Absence 

CHI 2 The number of working days/shifts per full-time equivalent (FTE) local authority employee lost 
due to sickness absence (Corp Plan) 

11.77 8.60  9.5 

CHI 3 % Sickness Absence Short-term 31% 22%   

CHI 4 % Sickness Absence Long-term 69% 78%   

Workforce – Training and Development 

CHI 5 Percentage of staff that have completed a Personal Review (excluding school staff)  94% TBC  100% 

CHI 6 % of staff completing mandatory training modules (in Corporate Plan):  
Dementia Friendly  

30% 52%  85% 

CHI 7 % of staff completing mandatory training modules (in Corporate Plan):  
Violence Against Women 

62% 70%  85% 

CHI 8 % of Council staff completing autism awareness training     

CHI 9 % of staff completing training modules: Welsh language e-learning module  N/A 6.40%   

CHI 10 Percentage of staff attending beginners Welsh course (as a percentage of numbers of total 
Welsh courses attended) 

32.78% (51) 40.71% (68)  N/A 

Corporate Safeguarding 

CHI 11 % of staff completing mandatory training modules (in Corporate Plan): Corporate Safeguarding 71% 77%  85% 

CHI 12 Number of referrals from directorates into Children’s services  989 1,171   

CHI 13 Number of referrals from directorates into adult services  317 99   

CHI 14 Number of Professional Concerns reported into CS TBC TBC   

CHI 15 Number of Professional Concerns reported into AS 129 TBC   

Workforce - Composition  

CHI 16 The % of Welsh Speakers  9.18%   

CHI 17 Gender Balance 

 

Female – 
68.94% 
Male – 
30.89% 

  

CHI 18 BME representation 6.76% 7.23%   

P
age 66



 

Page 40 of 53 

Ref 
Key Performance Indicators 

(outcome based where possible) 
2019/20 
Result 

2020/21 
Result 

2021/22 
Result 

2022/23 
Target 

CHI 19 Total Agency Spend      

CHI 20 The number of apprenticeships and trainee opportunities 152 119   

Digital 

CHI 21 The percentage of staff / devices enabled for agile and mobile working. 45.21% 64.08%  67% 

Finance & Procurement 

CHI 22 The percentage of overall spend with Cardiff-based organisation    52% 

CHI 23 The percentage of overall spend with Cardiff Capital Region-based organisations.    66% 

CHI 24 The percentage of overall spend with Welsh-based organisations    70% 

CHI 25 The percentage of new contracts which include social value commitments    Baseline 

CHI 26 Contract compliance     

CHI 27 Direct Awards    6.76% 

Health & Safety 

CHI 28 The percentage of statutory compliance for building maintenance for the 4 high risk disciplines 
(Fire Safety, Legionella, Gas and Electrical Safety) across all Council premises 

73.5% N/A  80% 

CHI 29 Workplace accidents and incidents     

Information Governance  

CHI 30 Percentage of Freedom of Information Requests & Environmental Information Regulation 
Requests responded to within the statutory timescales  

85.04% 81.84%  85% 

CHI 31 Percentage of Individual Rights Requests responded to within the statutory timescales 
(Formerly Data Protection Requests) 

83.6% 93.63%  85% 

CHI 32 Number of data breaches 323 277   

  

P
age 67



 

Page 41 of 53 

7. Directorate Risk 
 
The Directorate management team has identified three strategic corporate risks which are reported to SMT on a quarterly basis – Statutory 
Maintenance, Health & Safety and Waste Management recycling performance.  The directorate escalates two additional risks to the attention of 
SMT – Management of Ash Dieback and GLL due to their potential financial impact.  Arrangements have been put in place to manage directorate 
and corporate risks and these are reviewed on a regular basis.  See details of the actions being taken forward to mitigate against all directorate risks 
on the following hyperlink to the Directorate Risk Register. 
 
 

 
  

Significant Directorate Risks Lead Officer Action Date 

Corporate Risk Register 
Statutory Maintenance - Non completion of cyclical statutory inspections or the remedial works arising out of 
the inspections, required to maintain premises and related installations in a safe and legally compliant condition. 

 

Giles Parker / 
Matt Seymour / 
Paul James 

Q1, 2022/23 

Corporate Risk Register 
Health & Safety - Non compliance with corporate health and safety arrangements to control key risks across the 
Council in line with statutory requirements. 
 

Donna Jones / 
Paul James 

6 – 12 months 

Corporate Risk Register 
Waste Management - Failure to deliver recycling performance to meet statutory recycling performance targets 
within waste directive 
 

Matt Wakelam 2022/23 

Escalated Risk 
Management of Ash Die Back outbreak 
 

Jon Maidment Q4, 2022/23 

Escalated Risk / COVID-19  
GLL fall into liquidation as a company as a result of the income loss across contracts the consequence being the 
loss of a service provider with centres being closed . 
 

Jon Maidment / 
Steve Morris 

Ongoing 

P
age 68



 

Page 42 of 53 

8. Audit Recommendations 
 

External Audit Recommendations 
 

Directorates must ensure that they respond to any and all Audit Recommendations from external Auditors, including WAO, Estyn, CIW.  To view the 
audit tracker, please select the following Link You will be able to search and view any audit recommendations relevant to your directorate. 
 
Any recommendations which are statutory recommendations are set out below: 

Name of 
Audit 

Audit Recommendations Action 
Lead 

Officer 
Action 
Date 

Review of 
Leisure 

Establish a clear strategy, vision and clear priorities for 
leisure services, which incorporates consideration of the 
WFG Act. This should be used to guide the delivery of 
services provided by GLL. 

The Strategy was presented to both Scrutiny and Cabinet in Q4.  
Cabinet approved the strategy and ratified the governance 
arrangements.  The stakeholder groups have been established 
and work has commenced to develop action plans for each key 
theme of the strategy. 
 

Steve Morris  

Review of 
Leisure 

Consider how it can strengthen application of the 
sustainable development principle through the services 
delivered by GLL, including: 
• Adopt a more strategic approach to collaboration 
which ensures all organisations including Cardiff and the 
Vale Health Board/Public Health and the Third Sector 
are involved in planning and developing GLL another 
leisure services at a local and regional level. 
• Further integrate the planning and delivery of GLL 
Leisure Services with other public bodies and Council 
services, such as Education and Social Care. 
• Listen to, and involve, service users in the 
development and delivery of GLL and leisure services to 
ensure they represent the needs and aspirations of the 
full diversity of local communities they serve 
 
 

Local Partnership completed the report and this has been 
approved by the Senior Management group and Leisure Client. 
The report will be taken to Scrutiny and Cabinet in the new 
financial year to consider the recommendations. 

Steve Morris  

P
age 69

https://cityofcardiffcouncil.sharepoint.com/:x:/r/sites/performance/Collaboration/WAOTracker/WAO%20Audit%20Tracker%20Master.xlsx?d=w7345a8ff1e354e5aa1df85b53d5fb0ce&csf=1&web=1&e=6VBANr%20


 

Page 43 of 53 

Review of 
Leisure 

Improve contract management arrangements to ensure 
they monitor delivery of the revised specification in a 
transparent and systematic way. 

The Local Partnerships report has reflected on the current 
governance and benchmarked with other core cities and Local 
Authorities where they have outsourced their Leisure function.  
The report will be taken to Cabinet to consider the 
recommendations and any changes to the governance 
arrangements.  It was generally considered that the governance 
in place was fit for purpose and robust. However, consideration 
should be given for a "lighter touch" arrangement to be 
commensurate with other similar contract arrangements and to 
allow greater flexibility for GLL to operate and implement change. 
 

Steve Morris  

Review of 
Leisure 

Undertake a systematic review of the GLL contract 
service specification to ensure it is fit for purpose and 
supports the delivery of the Council’s vision for its 
leisure services and is in accordance with the WFG Act. 

The Local Partnership review is complete and recommendations 
will be taken to Scrutiny and Cabinet.  The Service Specification 
will be aligned to key strategic themes including WFG Act, Sport 
Wales Vision and Corporate Plan.  Changes in customer needs 
since the pandemic will be reflected in any changes to the service 
specification. 
 

Steve Morris  

Review of 
Leisure 

Ensure that the Council effectively considers the long-
term financial and well-being risks of the leisure 
contract in its corporate risk management processes. 

Risks continue to be reported through Directorate Delivery Plan 
and Corporate Risk quarterly processes.  The financial 
sustainability of the contract is continually under review with 
colleagues in Finance with GLL - with more robust, longer term 
financial projections completed.  Social Value and Wellbeing 
targets are aligned to our own Capital Ambition and various 
policies in the Council.  The Hardship Fund ceases in March 2022 
and GLL are confident that a return to full membership can be 
achieved as this is being refelcted in English contracts who are 
running a few months ahead of Wales in terms of recovering from 
lockdown. The Local Partnership report has recommended a 
number of changes to operation that could have a positive impact 
on both the current operating deficit and increase participation 
and attendance. 
 

Steve Morris  

Review of 
Leisure 

Improve reporting arrangements to ensure members 
receive a full and timely account of contract 

As previously stated the Local Partnership report will be taken to 
Scrutiny and Cabinet in 2022/23 for consideration.  An end of 

Steve Morris  

P
age 70



 

Page 44 of 53 

 
 
Internal Audit Recommendations 
 

Directorates must ensure that they respond to any and all Audit Recommendations from internal Auditors.   
 
Any recommendations are set out below: 

  

performance which includes revenue/expenditure. year report will be produced and submitted to the Leisure Client 
by GLL.  This report will be circulated to Cabinet Members and 
will include the end of year financial position. 
 

Name of Audit Audit Recommendations Action 
Lead 

Officer 
Action 
Date 

Gatehouse 20-21 
Take steps to explore development of the Gatehouse 
System and/or a replacement to include a full audit trail 
of changes to system access or passwords. 

Work is being carried out to procure a new weighbridge 
system. Matt Long 30/06/2022 

Waste Asset 
Management 

Review existing systems to ensure their suitability for 
effective asset management and undertake a gap analysis 
to ensure that all relevant assets are appropriately 
recorded. 

An asset management software programme called AMX is 
in the process of being procured. 

Matt Long 30/06/2022 

Waste Asset 
Management 

Develop an asset management strategy/policy and an 
asset renewal plan. 

Work is in progress to meet this recommendation. 
Awaiting the installation of AMX. 

Matt Long 30/06/2022 

Waste Collection 
Identify type and quality of information available and 
utilise existing reports such as PowerBi to support their 
role and direct decisions. 

All relevant information for the service area will be 
presented on Power Bi.  Information is being prepared 
and a designated officer is in the process of being 
appointed to work on this project. 

Lucy Payne 30/06/2022 

P
age 71



 

Page 45 of 53 

9. Scrutiny Recommendations 
 

Directorates must ensure that they respond in a timely manner to the recommendations arising from any Scrutiny Task and Finish Report and any 
Strategic Recommendations included within Scrutiny letters which have been either accepted or partially accepted by the Cabinet. To view the 
scrutiny recommendations tracker please select the following link. You will be able to search and view any scrutiny recommendations relevant to 
your directorate. 
 
Any scrutiny recommendations which are open are set out below: 

Scrutiny 
Committee/ 
Task & Finish 

Report 

Scrutiny Recommendations Action 
Lead 

Officer 

Action  
Date 

E&CSC 

Members recommend that the Council lobby Transport 
for Wales and other relevant bodies to make the case for 
a rear access route into Queen Street Station. 
 

 

Neil Hanratty   

E&CSC 

Officers work with the Access Forum to gain a full 
understanding of access needs, so that these can be 
considered and addressed from the start of the 
footbridge design process. 
 

 

Neil Hanratty   

E&CSC 

A further report to Cabinet be brought on the proposed 
delivery arrangements for the Cultural Production 
Partnership, to provide transparency and clarity. 
 

 

Neil Hanratty   

ESC 

1(a) The Committee agreed with the suggestion that 
there was a need for dedicated officers to go door to door 
to engage hard-to-reach communities and residents. The 
Committee recommend that this be a priority for the 
engagement and consultation process where additional 
officers are employed possibly on a short-term basis to 
undertake this work. 
 

A dedicated team is in the process of being recruited to 
assist with targeting hard to reach groups. The posts are 
12 months fixed term.  

Matt 
Wakelam 

31/03/2022 

P
age 72

https://cityofcardiffcouncil.sharepoint.com/:x:/r/sites/performance/Collaboration/ScrutinyRecommendations/Scrutiny%20Recommendations%20Tracker%20Directorates%202020-21.xlsx?d=w7e4d50ac7e7044aa97404b04de26767c&csf=1&web=1&e=yHgtek


 

Page 46 of 53 

ESC 

1(b). Furthermore, it is recommended that additional 
factors, such as the requirement for translators, be 
incorporated into this process to engage individuals 
where English may not be their first language. Likewise, 
where further assistance or targeted support may be 
needed for vulnerable individuals such as older people 
and those with dementia. 
 

As above, a dedicated team is in the process of being 
recruited to assist with targeting hard to reach groups. 
The team will link with existing officers to ensure that 
consideration is given to equality and diversity. 
Information will be available in various languages and 
formats. 

Matt 
Wakelam 

30/05/2022 

ESC 

2. The Committee recommend improved coordination 
between the recycling strategy and the planning process 
with increased input from Recycling Services Officers at 
the earlier design and planning approval stage, 
particularly on new builds. 
 

A dedicated officer is in place to comment on proposed 
planning applications. This officer also works with existing 
flats and HMO's to ensure implementation of the 
Strategic Planning Guidance (SPG). Officers are in the 
process of upating the SPG to maximise its impact.  

Matt 
Wakelam 

31/03/2022 

ESC 

3. Members understand the need for Section 46 notices, 
however they expressed concern over the wording when 
these are presented to entire streets. This can cause 
confusion for residents as well as animosity towards the 
Council when the issue may not directly relate to all 
individual households. It is recommended that the 
Section 46 notices be reviewed and reworded 
appropriately to account for this to try to avoid any future 
misunderstanding. 
 

Officers have reviewed and updated the section 46 
notice.  

Matt 
Wakelam 

31/03/2022 
Fully 

Implement
ed 

ESC 

4. The Committee recommend that recycling in schools 
be incorporated into the draft Waste Strategy, particularly 
given that schools fall under the Council’s remit. 
 
 

Schools are being prioritised as part of the Trade waste 
introduction of segregated recycling. In addition, school 
engagement has restarted now that covid restrictions 
have eased. Details on the programme will be 
incorporated into the waste strategy.  

Matt 
Wakelam 

31/03/22 
Fully 

Implement
ed 

E&CSC 

That, where covid restrictions allow, the Council use our 
social media channels to broadcast clear messages to 
encourage usage of GLL leisure centres, including 
providing information on public transport links 
 

Council internal Comms teams are included in joint client 
meetings, Partnership Board and briefings. A dedicated 
Comms officer has been allocated to support media 
publicity and promotion 

Steve Morris 
01/01/2022 
implement
ed in full 

PRAP Corporate - That you prioritise undertaking work-related Progress on track, the Health & Safety Team are Donna Jones 31/12/2022 

P
age 73



 

Page 47 of 53 

stress risk assessments within all service areas supporting service areas implement the Corporate Stress 
Risk Assessment process.  Next monitor / review to take 
place at the Health & Safety Forum in July. 

PRAP 

Waste Management - The service undertakes best 
practice research of the policies and processes of selected 
public and private organisations, led by its senior 
managers, focused on city waste operations which are 
similar to Cardiff's. 

Best practice shows that sickness needs to be managed as 
a continuous process.  Currently our Policy has hold 
points for sickness stage meetings and when these are 
triggered the sickness process stops until the meeting has 
taken place.  Meetings can take significant time to 
arrange due to Officers seeking representation from 
Unions.  Any change to Policy would need to be taken 
Corporately and require consultation. (Not implemented) 
New Occupational Health facilities being implemented at 
Lamby Way to support timely management sickness and 
support to Officers. (Partially Implemented) 

Matt 
Wakelam 

30/09/2022 

PRAP 

Waste Management - arrangements are put in place for 
Cabinet and Scrutiny to receive quarterly progress reports 
on sickness absence within the service 
 

Final year review of Sickness to be sent to PRAP once 
finalised. (not implemented) Matt 

Wakelam 
30/06/2022 

PRAP 

Waste Management - the service prioritises a risk 
assessment to establish the causes of stress in Waste 
Management 
 

New Occupational Health facilities being implemented at 
Lamby Way to support timely management work related 
stress sickness (Partially Implemented) 

Matt 
Wakelam 

30/06/2022 

E&CSC 

Cabinet urgently pursues with Sport Wales the feasibility 
of maintaining our current existing Joint Venture 
partnership with Cardiff Metropolitan University rather 
than entering a Regional Sport Partnership. 
 

Meetings with CEX of Sport Wales taken place and case 
made for a Cardiff or Cardiff and Vale partnership. 
Feedback also taken to the Central South regional forum 
stating the Cardiff position. 

Steve Morris 
Fully 

Implement
ed 

E&CSC 

Cabinet takes up Sport Wales’s offer to engage to: a) 
enable political input and to build political mandate; b) 
lobby for a reduced footprint, either Cardiff-only or one 
based on the Cardiff & Vale University Health Board 
footprint; c) work collaboratively to achieve agreement 
on the reduced footprint as set out above 
 

Meetings with CEX of Sport Wales taken place and case 
made for a Cardiff or Cardiff and Vale partnership. 
Feedback also taken to the Central South regional forum 
stating the Cardiff position. Political position from 
Scrutiny and Cabinet Member presented to Sport Wales 

Steve Morris  

E&CSC Cabinet actively engages with the Regional Sport Ongoing commitment to attend the Central South forums Steve Morris  

P
age 74



 

Page 48 of 53 

  

Partnership development process to build trust and 
commitment 
 

and support the group in partnership with Cardiff Met 
Sport Cardiff 

E&CSC 

Cabinet works collaboratively with Regional Sport 
Partnership partners to agree governance arrangements 
that ensure Cardiff’s voice is heard in proportion to 
population size. 
 

Ongoing commitment to attend the Central South forums 
and support the group in partnership with Cardiff Met 
Sport Cardiff Steve Morris  

E&CSC 

Cabinet seeks assurance from Sport Wales that priorities 
identified for Cardiff will not be diluted in any regional 
partnership and funding will not be diluted. 
 

The model is still to be developed, the governance and 
lead is in development and undecided and therefore 
there are no assurances that Cardiff or other regions may 
be at detriment.  

Steve Morris  

E&CSC 

Cabinet seeks clarification from Sport Wales on their 
basic expectations regarding governance models. 
 

This is emerging but Sport Wales are not set on a specific 
model and request the central south group to collaborate 
and decide on the best governance structure. Information 
is emerging from the North Wales model but isn’t proven 
as yet 

Steve Morris  

E&CSC 

The Committee recommends that informal targets, set at 
pre-covid levels, be introduced for the Key Performance 
Indicators K5.3, K5.4 and K5.5, and reported to this 
Committee periodically over the next 12 months. To be 
clear, this means the targets would not be included in the 
Corporate Plan but held at Directorate level. 

 

Jon Day   

P
age 75



 

Page 49 of 53 

10. Workforce Planning & Development 
 

Workforce Planning helps the Council identify the capacity and capability it needs within the workforce to effectively deliver services 
 
A mandatory workforce planning process forms part of the corporate planning cycle and must be completed to inform the development of the Directorate 
Delivery Plan. It is aligned with the Council's business and financial plans to ensure that the Council has the right people with the right skills in the right place at 
the right time and at the right cost. 
 
Any actions identified as part of the workforce planning exercise should be included below. Detailed guidance is available on the Council’s intranet. 
 

 
  

Workforce Planning Actions Lead Officer Action Date 

See hyperlink to the Directorate Workforce Plan Action Plan 2023/24 
 

 
 

P
age 76

https://cityofcardiffcouncil.sharepoint.com/sites/hr/Articles/Workforce%20Planning.aspx


 

Page 50 of 53 

11. Corporate Safeguarding Requirements 

 
Safeguarding is keeping children and adults at risk safe from abuse- whether it is sexual, physical, emotional, financial or neglect- and other kinds 
of harm, such as exploitation and radicalisation.  
 
All Directorates are responsible for safeguarding and must therefore ensure that: 
 

 The Corporate Safeguarding Self Evaluations (CSSE) is completed annually for each Directorate. The self-evaluation process and guidance on 
how to complete it can be found in Appendix 5 of the Corporate Safeguarding Policy Corporate Safeguarding Information (sharepoint.com) 
 

 When it is determined that a specific Services Are must complete the Corporate Safeguarding Self Evaluations (CSSE), a nominated lead must 
be identified and that the evaluation is completed annually. 
 

 Safeguarding operational procedures are in place and that these support the development of safeguarding practices 
 

Any actions arising from the Directorate (and Service Area) annual Corporate Safeguarding Self Evaluations (CSSE) for this financial year are 
set out below: 

 

 

  

Corporate Safeguarding Actions identified as part of the Directorate Corporate Safeguarding Self 
Evaluations 

Lead Officer  Action Date 

Support the development and delivery of differentiated training materials to meet the training needs of front-line staff 
across the directorate, taking into account language barriers.  
 

Donna 
Jones/Tamar 

Wilson 

Completed by Qtr 3 

Support delivery of differentiated training for front line staff, which may include group or 1:1 sessions as appropriate. 
 

Donna 
Jones/Tamar 

Wilson 

Completed by Qtr 4 

Review arrangements for control of contractors working on premises where children / vulnerable adults are located.  
Arrangements include DBS checks, where required or physical / procedural controls to sufficiently mitigate the risk of 
contact with unsuitable adults. 
 

Donna 
Jones/David Lowe 

Completed by Qtr 3 

P
age 77

https://cityofcardiffcouncil.sharepoint.com/SitePages/Corporate-Safeguarding-Information.aspx


 

Page 51 of 53 

12. Delivering the Welsh Language Standards 

 
Each Directorate must ensure compliance with the Welsh language standards, the commitments of the Welsh Language Skills Strategy and any 
issues raised by the Welsh Language Commissioner. Each directorate will therefore ensure that: 

 

 Any recommendations or improvement plan actions issued by the Welsh Language Commissioner are responded to within the agreed 
timescales 

 

 Every Customer Facing posts must be Welsh Desirable 
 

 All service areas have an appropriate complement of Welsh Speakers to guarantee a service in Welsh. 
 

 Undertake an Annual Welsh Language Assessment 
 
 

Any Recommendations or Improvement Plan Actions issued by the Welsh Language Commissioner relating to the Directorate are set out 
below: 

 

WLC 
Investigation 

Number 

Description of Enforcement Action Responsible 
Council 
officer 

Date for 
completion 
presented 

by the WLC 

Actual 
completion 

date 

Date evidence 
of completion 
presented to 

WLC 

EA1 

Cardiff Council must review its internal checklist and guidance for third 
parties to include the requirements of the Welsh language standards 
regarding tendering. 
 

Giles Parker 04/03/2021 04/03/2021 04/03/22 

EA2 

Cardiff Council must set out to external organisations advertising or 
administering tenders on behalf of the Council all the requirements of 
standard 76, and the variation of terms, including the need for Welsh 
language website pages when advertising or administering tenders on behalf 
of the Council on a website. 
 
 

Giles Parker 04/03/2021 04/03/2021 04/03/22 

P
age 78

https://cityofcardiffcouncil.sharepoint.com/Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?id=%2FDocuments%2FWelsh%20Language%20Standards%20%2D%20The%20City%20of%20Cardiff%20Council%2Epdf&parent=%2FDocuments
https://cityofcardiffcouncil.sharepoint.com/Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?id=%2FDocuments%2FWelsh%20Language%20Skills%20Strategy%202021%2Epdf&parent=%2FDocuments


 

Page 52 of 53 

WLC 
Investigation 

Number 

Description of Enforcement Action Responsible 
Council 
officer 

Date for 
completion 
presented 

by the WLC 

Actual 
completion 

date 

Date evidence 
of completion 
presented to 

WLC 

EA3 

Cardiff Council must create a format suitable for its tender documents that 
does not treat the Welsh language less favourably, in accordance with the 
requirements of standard 76. This includes informing third parties who 
create tender documents for the Council of the nature of the requirements 
 

Giles Parker 04/03/2021 04/03/2021 04/03/22 

EA4 
Cardiff Council must provide sufficient written evidence to satisfy the Welsh 
Language Commissioner that it has completed enforcement actions 1-3. 
 

Giles Parker 04/03/2021 04/03/2021 04/03/22 

EA5 
Cardiff Council must review its tender guidance, making the requirements of 
standard 77 clear to internal staff and third parties. 
 

Giles Parker 04/03/2021 04/03/2021 04/03/22 

EA6 
Cardiff Council must provide sufficient written evidence to satisfy the Welsh 
Language Commissioner that it has completed enforcement action 5. 
 

Giles Parker 04/03/2021 04/03/2021 04/03/22 

 

P
age 79



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Economy & Culture 
Scrutiny Committee

Economic Development Directorate – Overview and Key Areas of Focus
21st June 2022

P
age 81



Directorate Responsibilities

• Major Projects (Metro Central, Atlantic Wharf, ISV, Dumballs Road)

• City Deal, Cardiff City-Region (strategic partnerships eg. Western Gateway)

• Local Economic Development (Inward Investment / City Marketing / 
Business Support)

• City Centre Management (including Business Improvement District)

• Cultural Venues (Castle/ SDHl/ NT/ City Hall/ Cardiff Museum etc)

• Major Events (Cardiff Marathon, national / international sports events etc.) 

• Tourism (Tourism Network, Tourism Information Centre, Convention Bureau)

• Parks, Sport & Leisure and Cardiff Harbour Authority

P
age 82



Key Corporate Indicators
Gross Expenditure Budget 2021/22 £ 50.17 million

Income Budget 2021/22 £ 41.88 million

Net Budget  2021/22 £   8.29 million

Hardship Fund Claims 2021/22 £ 10.36 million 

Savings Target 2021/22 £916,000

Number of Permanent Employees 1,414 

2021/22       
Target

2021/22        
Result

Personal Review Compliance  (objectives finalised) 100% 100%
Sickness Absence (FTE days) 11.90 16.41

P
age 83



Achievements - 2021/22 

• Directorate - £54,000 underspend against the net controllable budget of £8.29 million.

• 1,190 new jobs created and 912 jobs safeguarded in the local economy (14% up on 
previous year).

• New masterplan for the International Sports Village approved and planning 
permission for the new Velodrome secured; Indoor Arena procurement has 
progressed well; Cabinet approval for the Canal Quarter framework report . 

• Cardiff Castle hosted Live & Unlocked initiative supporting the reopening of live music 
venues in the City;  Signature Music event to be launched in 2023 with pre events in 
2022.

• Successful conclusion of the New Theatre property lease to HQ Theatres & Hospitality 
with the venue reopening on the 19 September. 

• Successful transfer of the Norwegian Church to the Welsh Norwegian Society.

• Securing WWE Event for September 2022.

P
age 84



Achievements - 2021/22 Continued 

• Waterloo Gardens achieved Green Flag status taking the total to 15;  5 year 
Allotment Strategy published.

• Physical Activity and Sport Strategy published.

• £2.3 million programme of investment delivered into play areas and parks 
infrastructure.

• Launch of the Coed Caerdydd project resulting in an increase in number of trees 
planted in excess of 350% when compared to the historical norm

P
age 85



Wellbeing objective:  
Safe, Confident & Empowered Communities

Corporate Plan
• Support grass-roots and community sports 

• Maintain the long-term future sustainability of our leisure centres

• Improve our parks and public spaces

• Support the development of a National Park City for Cardiff

P
age 86



Performance Measures

Wellbeing objective: 
Safe, Confident & Empowered Communities

Key Performance Indicators
2020/21

Result
2021/22

Result
2022/23
Target

The number of visits to Local Authority sport and leisure centres 
during the year per 1,000 population where the visitor will be 
participating in physical activity

920 5,008
Monitor KPI, 
but no target 

set

The number of Green Flag parks and open spaces 14 15 16

The number of volunteer hours committed to parks and green 
spaces

1,665 16,238
Monitor KPI, 
but no target 

set

P
age 87



Corporate Plan
• Work with the CCR City Deal to progress Cardiff projects, support wider city-

region projects and input into any Corporate Joint Committee transition 
arrangements to support the regional Covid-19 recovery strategy;

• Work with the UK Gov and WG to implement a programme of investments to 
deliver investment and capacity improvements to support the delivery of the 
Council’s Transport White Paper.

• Ensure Cardiff remains an open, competitive and outward-looking international 
city;

• Enhance the city centre as a location for businesses and investment and reassert 
its role as a regional employment centre;

Wellbeing objective:  
A Capital City that Works for Wales

P
age 88



Corporate Plan
• Write the next chapter in Cardiff Bay’s regeneration story;

• Develop a sustainable city-wide post-Covid economy;

• Establish Cardiff as a Smart City;

• Work with partners to support the retail and hospitality sectors in successfully 
re-emerging from lockdown;

• Grow Cardiff as a centre of creativity and culture;

• Work with event promoters and the city’s cultural venues to rebuild the capital’s 
event and cultural offer;

Wellbeing objective:  
A Capital City that Works for Wales

P
age 89



Performance Measures

Wellbeing objective:  
A Capital City that Works for Wales

Key Performance Indicators
2020/21

Result
2021/22

Result
2022/23
Target

Number of new jobs created and safeguarded where the Council 
has played an active role

1,845 2,102 1,000

City centre footfall 15,912,899 40,490,196 Monitor KPI

Grade 'A' office space
(from commencement of construction)

0ft² 235,791ft²
300,000 ft²                 
rolling 2 yr 

target

The number of staying visitors 640,000 TBC Monitor KPI

Total visitor numbers 8,260,000 TBC Monitor KPI

Total (staying) visitor days 1,510,000 TBC Monitor KPI

Attendances at Commercial Venues 
(Castle / St David's Hall / Mansion Hs / Cardiff Museum)

174,286 587,757 Monitor KPI

P
age 90



Corporate Plan
• Programme the delivery of the bridge crossing scheme at Llanrumney;

Wellbeing objective:  
Cardiff Grows in a Resilient Way

P
age 91



Corporate Plan
• Protect the council’s historic buildings;

Wellbeing objective:  
Modernising & Integrating our Public Services

P
age 92



Strategic Issue - City Centre recovery - avoiding a retail collapse

Strategic Issue - Securing funding for extended local business support 

Strategic Issue - Tourism and events recovery – identifying a pipeline of events

Strategic Issue - Increased cost of fuel, supplies and construction materials / labour

Directorate Issue - Progressing the Roath Park Dam

Escalated Risk - Ash Dieback

Other priorities for the year ahead
Delivering the Administration’s Manifesto

P
age 93



Questions?

P
age 94



 

 

CYNGOR CAERDYDD 
CARDIFF COUNCIL  

 
 

ECONOMY & CULTURE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
         21 June 2022 

 
 

DEVELOPING A WORK PROGRAMME 2022-2023 

 

 
Purpose of Report 

1. This report seeks the views of Members regarding the approach they wish to 

take to discuss and agree priorities for Committee’s Work Programme for 

2022/23. 

 

Background 

2. The Constitution states that each Scrutiny Committee will set its own work 

programme for the forthcoming year (Scrutiny Procedure Rule 7). This 

Committee’s terms of reference give the Committee responsibility for 

scrutinising, measuring and actively promoting improvement in the Council’s 

performance in the provision of services and compliance with Council policies, 

aims and objectives in the following areas: 

 

 Cardiff City Region City Deal 

 Inward Investment & the 

Marketing of Cardiff 

 Economic Strategy & 

Employment 

 European Funding & Investment 

 Small to Medium Enterprises 

 Cardiff Harbour Authority 

 Lifelong Learning 

 Leisure Centres 

 Sports Development 

 Parks & Green Spaces 

 Libraries, Arts & Culture 

 Civic Buildings 

 Events & Tourism 

 Strategic Projects 

 Innovation &Technology Centres 

 Local Training & Enterprise

 

3. This Committee’s terms of reference also include the ability to ‘assess the 

impact of partnerships with and resources and services provided by external 

organisations including the Welsh Government, joint local government 

services, Welsh Government Sponsored Public Bodies and quasi-

Page 95

Agenda Item 8



 

 

departmental non-governmental bodies on the effectiveness of Council service 

delivery’. 

 

4. Scrutiny plays an essential role in promoting accountability, efficiency and 

effectiveness in the Council’s decision-making process and the way in which it 

delivers services. The main roles of the Scrutiny Committees are: 

i. Holding to account the Cabinet and officers, as decision-makers. 

ii. Being a ‘critical friend’, questioning how decisions have been made, 

providing a ‘check and balance’ to decision makers, and undertaking 

reviews of services and policy. 

iii. Providing a voice for citizens. 

Developing a work programme 

5. The Committee constructs the work programme at the beginning of the 

municipal year, and it is updated periodically during the year. Given the range 

of service areas and subjects covered by each Committee, the work 

programme needs to be carefully constructed to ensure that the time and 

resources available to the Committee are most effectively used.  

 

6. The first stage is to identify potential work programme items for consideration 

and prioritisation by Committee Members by:  

i. seeking suggestions from Members and officers  

ii. reviewing the items recommended by the previous Committee 

iii. reviewing corporate documents, forthcoming legislation, the work 

programmes of relevant auditors, inspectors and regulators and 

partnership, consortia and regional documents, and  

iv. checking other relevant documentation to identify areas within the terms of 

reference for the Committee. 

 

7. Following the preparation of a list of potential items, Committee Members will 

need to prioritise the items, given the range of subject areas covered by the 

Committee and the limited resources available. Normally, Members prioritise 

items where scrutiny can have most impact, that are of importance to the 

Page 96



 

 

public, that will help to deliver improved performance and that are not being 

investigated by other routes. This ensures that the time and resources 

available to the Committee are most effectively used. 

 

8. The aim is to balance the work programme to enable Scrutiny Committees to 

have a clear input into the development of the main policies and strategies that 

form the Council’s policy framework, comment on operational and service 

delivery issues, identify potential improvements and savings, highlight good 

practice and reflect the voice and concerns of the public. 

 

Way Forward 

9. Members may wish to explore the best approach to developing the 2022/23 

work programme. In previous years Members have held a work programming 

forum to consider options for the work programme and prioritise topics for 

consideration. The forum’s proposals are then presented to Committee for 

formal approval of the work programme. 

 

Legal Implications 

10. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and 

recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this 

report are to consider and review matters there are no direct legal 

implications. However, legal implications may arise if and when the matters 

under review are implemented with or without any modifications. Any report 

with recommendations for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out 

any legal implications arising from those recommendations. All decisions 

taken by or on behalf of the Council must (a) be within the legal powers of the 

Council; (b) comply with any procedural requirement imposed by law; (c) be 

within the powers of the body or person exercising powers on behalf of the 

Council; (d) be undertaken in accordance with the procedural requirements 

imposed by the Council e.g. Scrutiny Procedure Rules; (e) be fully and 

properly informed; (f) be properly motivated; (g) be taken having regard to the 

Council's fiduciary duty to its taxpayers; and (h) be reasonable and proper in 

all the circumstances. 

Page 97



 

 

 

Financial Implications 

11. The Scrutiny Committee is empowered to enquire, consider, review and 

recommend but not to make policy decisions. As the recommendations in this 

report are to consider and review matters there are no direct financial 

implications at this stage in relation to any of the work programme. However, 

financial implications may arise if and when the matters under review are 

implemented with or without any modifications. Any report with 

recommendations for decision that goes to Cabinet/Council will set out any 

financial implications arising from those recommendations. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

The Committee is recommended to discuss and agree the approach to 

developing the Committee’s work programme for 2022-23, so that a final 

version of the programme can be brought back to the Committee for formal 

approval. 

 

 

Davina Fiore 

Director of Governance & Legal Services  

15 June 2022 

 

Page 98


	Agenda
	2 Terms of Reference
	5 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 Shared Prosperity Fund
	7 Overview of Economic Development Directorate
	Appendix A
	Appendix B

	8 Work Programme 2022-23

